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AQ 242 (12/11) Petition for a Writ of Habeas Corpus Under 28 U.S.C. § 2241

PETITION FOR A WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS UNDER 28 U.S.C. § 2241

Instructions
1. Who Should Use This Form. You should use this form if
. you are a federal prisoner and you wish to challenge the way your sentence is being carried out (for

example, you claim that the Bureau of Prisons miscalculated your sentence or failed to properly award
good time credits), '

i you are in federal or state custody because of something other than a judgment of conviction (for
example, you are in pretrial detention or are awaiting extradition); or
. you are alleging that you are illegally detained in immigration custody.
2, Who Should Not Use This Form. You should not use this form if

. you are challenging the validity of a federal judgment of conviction and sentence (2 z‘hese challenges are
generally raised in a motion under 28 U.S.C. § 2255);
: you are challenging the validity of a state judgment of conviction and sentence (these challenges are
_generally raised in a petition under 28 US.C. § 2254); or
. you are challenging a final order of removal in an immigration case (these challenges are generally
raised in a petition for review directly with a United States Court of Appeals).

3 Preparing the Petition. The petition must be typed or neatly written, and you must sign and date it under
penalty of perjury. A false statement may lead to prosecution.

All questions must be answered clearly and concisely in the space on the form. If needed, you may attach
additional pages or file a memorandum in support of the petition. If you attach additional pages, number the
pages and identify which section of the petition is being continued. Note that some courts have page limitations.
All filings must be submitted on paper sized 8% by 11 inches. Do not use the back of any page.

4. Supporting Documents. In addition to your petition, you must send to the court a copy of the decisions you are
challenging and a copy of any briefs or administrative remedy forms filed in your case.

5. Required Filing Fee. You must include the $5 filing fee required by 28 U.S.C. § 1914(a). If you are unable to
pay the filing fee, you must ask the court for permission to proceed in forma pauperis — that is, as a person who
cannot pay the filing fee — by submitting the documents that the court requires.

6. Submitting Documents to the Court. Mail your petition and copies to the clerk of the United States
District Court for the district and division in which you are confined. For a list of districts and divisions, see 28
U.8.C. §§ 81-131. All copies must be 1dent1cal to the original. Cop1es may be legibly handwntten

If you want a file-stamped copy of the petltlon you must enclose an additional copy of the petition and ask the
court to file-stamp it and return it to you.

7. Change of Address. You must immediately notify the court in writing of any change of address. If you do not,
- the court may dismiss your case.

* David Roland Hinkson, Pro Se
Reg. No. 08795-023
USP McCreary
P.0. Box 3000
Pine Knot, Kentucky 42635
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A0 242 (12/11) Petation for a Writ of Habeas Corpus Under 28 U.S.C. § 2241

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
: for the
EASTERN DISTRICT OF KENTUCKY

David Roland Hinkson

Petitioner

b Case No.

(Supplied by Clerk of Court)

C. Gomez, Acting Warden
Respondent
(name of warden or authorized person having custody of petitioner)

Nd A N NN Nt e N N NS

PETITION FOR A WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS UNDER 28 U.S.C. § 2241

Personal Information

L () Your full name: David Roland Hinkson
(b) Other names you have used: None

2. Place of confinement: ,
(2) Name of institution: ~ United States Penitentiary McCreary
(b) Address: P.0. Box 3000, Pine Knot, Kentucky 42635
(¢) Your identification number: 08795-023

3. Are you currently being held on orders by:
(R Federal authorities (J State authorities O Other - explain:

4. Are you currently:

(JA pretrial detainee (waiting for trial on criminal charges)
£ Serving a sentence (incarceration, parole, probation, etc.) after having been convicted of a crime

If you are currently serving a sentence, provide:

(2) Name and location of court that sentenced you: United States District
Court, District of Idaho
(b) Docket number of criminal case: 1:04-CR-00127-RCT
(¢) Date of sentencing: " June 3, 2005 .
(JBeing held on an immigration charge
OOther (explain):
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AQ 242 (12/11) Petition for a Writ of Habeas Corpus Under 28 U.S.C. § 2241

Decision or Action You Are Challenging

5. What are you challenging in this petition:

(JHow your sentence is being carried out, calculated, or credited by prison or parole authorities (for exampie,
revocation or calculation of good time credits)

O Pretrial detention

O Immigration detention

(O Detainer

The validity of youf conviction or sentence as imposed (for example, sentence beyond the statutory
maximum or improperly calculated under the sentencing guidelines) '

O Disciplinary proceedings '

O Other (explain):

6. Provide more information about the decision or action you are challenging: |

(a) Name and location of the agency or court: United States District Court,
District of Idaho. :

(b) Docket number, case number, or opinion number: 1:04-CR-00127 RCT

(¢) Decision or action you are challenging (for disciplinary proceedings, specify the penalties imposed):
Petitioner is challenging the [unit] of prosecution for solicitation
to commit a crime of violence, 18 USC § 373; Whether said crime [is] a "crime of

violence," and whether the sentences should have ran concurrently.
(d) Date of the decision or action: _ June 3, 2005; June 13, 2005

Your Earlier Challenges of the Decision or Action

7. First appeal
Did you appeal the decision, file a grievance, or seek an administrative remedy?
‘B Yes ONo
(a) If “Yes,” provide: :
(1) Name of the authority, agency, or court: Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals

(2) Date of filing: June 8, 2005 .

(3) Docket number, case number, or opinion number: 05-30303

4) Resujlt: Appeal Granted but reversed en banc (change of standard).

(5). Date of result:  May 30, 2008; Fn Banc Decision November 5, 2009

(6) Issuesraised: Whether the district court abused its discretion indenying
Hinkson's motion for a new trial under FRCrP 33 where the Government's key
witness had been shown to be a forger and a liar, and had committed these

crimes on the witpess stand in Hinkson's criminal jury trial for allegedly
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AQ 242 (12/11) Petition for 2 Writ of Habeas Corpus Under 28 US.C. §.2241

soliciting the murder of three federal officials.

(b) If you answered “No,” explajn why you did not appeal: N/A

8. Second appeél

After the first appeal, did you file a second appeal to a higher authority, agency, or court?
BYes ONo

(2) If “Yes,” provide:

(1) Name of the authority, agency, or court: Supreme Court of the United States

(2) Date of filing: November 10, 2010
(3) Docket number, case number, or opinion number: 10-869

(4) Resultt  Petition for writ of certiorari denied

(5) Date of result:  April 18, 2011

(6) Issuesraised: I. Does a defendant have a right to prove that the
Coverrment 's chief witness has testified falsely and tendered forped dociemts on an issue
critical to the Goverrment's caseHere, Whethere the witness served his comtry in cambat?
II. Did the divided en banc panel of the Ninth Circuit err in holding that
a witness's perjury and fraud concerning his military record would be of
"limited probative value" to jurors assessing that witness's credibility?

(b) If you answered “No,” explain why ybu did not file a second appeal: N/A

9. Third appeal Supreme Court is Court of last resort in appeal process.
After the second appeal, did you file a third appeal to a higher authority, agency, or court?
Yes ONo | |
(a) If “Yes,” provide: ‘
(1) Name of the authority, agency, or court:

(2) Date of filing:

(3) Docket number, case number, or opinion number:
(4) Result:

(5) Date of result:

' (6) Issues raised:
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AO 242 (12/11) Petition for a Writ of Habeas Corpus Under 28 U.S.C. §2241

10.

(b) If you answered “No,” explain why you did not file a third appeal: The Petition for a writ

of certiorari is the last filing in the federal criminal direct appeal process,

and the Supreme Court is the Court of last resort in this process.
Motion under 28 U.S.C. § 2255 )

In this petition, are you challenging the validity of your conviction or sentence as imposed?

& Yes

ONo

If “Yes,” answer the following:

(@)

(b)

Have you already filed a motion under 28 US.C. § 2255 that challenged this conviction or sentence?
Yes O No

If “Yes,” provide:

(1) Name of court: U.S. District Court, District of Idaho
(2) Casenumber: _1:12-CV-00196-RCT

(3) Date of filing: April 13, 2012

(4) Result  Petition denied without evidentiary hearing

(5) Date of result: Aucust 28. 2012
(6) Issuesraised: Newly discovered evidence; judicial bias; Brady violation,

Tneffective assistance of counsel; Lack of jurisdiction; Jury misconduct;

Covernmental misconduct; and Prosecutorial misconduct.

Have you ever filed a motion in a United States Court of Appeals under 28 U.S.C. § 2244(b)(3)(A),

seeking permission to file a second or successive Section 2255 motion to challenge this conviction or
sentence? '

0 Yes & No
If “Yes,” provide:
@) Naine of court:
(2) Case number:
(3) Date of filing:
(4) Result:

(5) Dateof result:

(6) Issues raised:
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AQ 242 (12/11) Petition for a Writ of Habeas Corpus Under 28 U.S.C. § 2241

11.

(c) Explain why the remedy under 28 U.S.C. § 2255 is inadequate or ineffective to challenge your

conviction or sentence:

Appeals of immigration proceedings N/A

Does this case concern immigration proceedings?

OYes ONo
‘ If “Yes,” provide:
(a) Date you were taken into immigration custody:
(b) Date of the removal or reinstatement order:
(© Did you file an appeal with the Board of Immigration Appeals?
O Yes 0 No

If “Yes,” provide:
(1) Date of filing:

(2) Case number:

(3) Result:

(4) Date of result:

(5) Issues raised:

@ Did you appeal the decision to the United States Court of Appeals?
O Yes ‘0O No
If “Yes,” provide:
(1) Name of court:

(2) Date of flh'ng:'

(3) Case number:
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AO 242 (12/11) Petition for a Writ of Habeas Corpus Under 28 U.S.C. § 2241

(4) Result:
(5) Date of result:

(6) Issues raised:

12, Other appeals
Other than the appeals you listed above, have you filed any other petition, application, or motion about the issues
raised in this petition?
®Yes ONo
If “Yes,” provide:
(2) Kind of petition, motion, or application: 28 USC § 2241
(b) Name of the authority, agency, or court: United States District Court, District of

California, Eastern District
(c) Date of filing: 2013

(d) Docket number, case number; or opinion number: 1:13-CVv-01571-AWI-JLT
(e) Result: Petition denied

(f) Date of result: June 3, 2014

() Issues raised: Hinkson pre uments relati o

innocence of the offenses of conviction (i.e., solicitation to commit a crime
of violence, three counts, 18 USC § 373, murder for hire).

Grounds for Your Challenge in This Petition

13. State every ground (reason) that supports your claim that you are being held in violation of the Constitution,
laws, or treaties of the United States. Attach additional pages if you have more than four grounds. State the
facts supporting each ground.

GROUND ONE: Whether (1) Hinkson's prosecution for solicitation is one unit
of prosecution; (2) Whether the solicitation counts are crimes of violence; and
(3) Whether Hinkson's 30 year sentence should be reduced to 10 years and ran
concurrent with case no. 02-CR-142-RCT. |
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AQ 242 (12/11) Petition for a Writ of Habeas Corpus Under 28 U.S.C. § 2241

(a) Supporting facts (Be brief. Do not cite cases or law.):

Please see attached memorandum of law with attachments, for facts and law.

(b) Did you present Ground One in all appeals that were available to you?
OYes ONo '

GROUND TWO:

(2) Supporting facts (Be brief. Do not cite cases or law.):

(b) Did you present Ground Two in all appeals that were available to you?
OYes ONo

GROUND THREE:

‘(a) Supporting facts (Be brief. Do not cite cases or law.):

(b) Did you present Ground Three in all appeals that were available to you?
OYes ONo
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GROUND FOUR:

(2) Supporting facts (Be brief. Do not cite cases or law.):

(b) Did you present Ground Four in all appeals that were available to you?
OYes ONo

14. If there are any grounds that you did not present in all appeals that were available to you, explain why you did
not:

Request for Relief

15. State exactly what you want the court to do: merge the solicitation convictions and
sentences to a total sentence of 10 years as one unit of prosecution; (2)
hold that the solicitation offenses are not crimes of violence; and (3)
run the sentence in case no. 04-CR-127 concurrent with case no. 02-CR-142
for an aggregate sentence of 13 years, and order the Petitioner released

from further incarceration.
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Declaration Under Penalty Of Perjury

If you are incarcerated, on what date did you place this petition in the prison mail system:

I declare under penalty of perjury that I am the petitioner, I have read this petition or had it read to me, and the

information in this petition is true and correct. I understand that a false statement of a material fact may serve as the basis
for prosecution for perjury. y

Date:

Signature of Petitioner

Signature of Attorney or other authorized person, if any
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

EASTERN DISTRICT OF KENTUCKY

DAVID ROLAND HINKSON,

PETITIONER,

V. Case No.

C. Gomez, Acting Warden,

USP McCreary,

RESPONDENT.

PETITIONER'S MEMORANDUM OF LAW IN SUPPORT OF PETITION

FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS UNDER 28 U.S.C. § 2241

NOW COMES the Petitioner, David Roland Hinkson,
prd se and pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 2241, and any and all
other applicable legal authority, hereby offers his
memorandum of law in support of his petition for writ

of habeas corpus, and would state and argue as follows.



JURISDICTION

Hinkson was convicted in the United States District

Court for the District of Idaho, inter alia, three counts

of solicitation to commit a crime of violence in case no.
1:04-CR-00127-RCT. He received a federal term of imprisonment
for 30 years (10, 10, 10 consecutive), ran comnsecutive to a
13 year sentence imposed in case no. 3:02-CR-00142-RCT. He

is currently incarcerated at United States Penitentiary,

Pine Knot, Kentucky. See Attachment-A (Criminal Judgment).

28 U.S.C. § 2241(a) articulates:

Writs of habeas corpus may be granted by the
Supreme Court, any justice thereof, the district conrts
and any circuit judge within their respective jurisdiction.

See also § 2241(c)(1), (2), and (3).

Thus, this Court has jurisdiction of the instant

§ 2241 petitionm.



ISSUE PRESENTED

WHETHER HINKSON'S THREE CONVICTIONS FOR SOLICITATION
TO COMMIT A CRIME OF VIOLENCE UNDER 18 U.S.C.§ 373
ARE A SINGLE UNIT OF PROSECUTION REQUIRING THE

CONVICTIONS AND/OR SENTENCES TO MERGE;:

WHETHER THE SOLICITATION CRIMES ARE "CRIMES OF
VIOLENCE'"; AND

WHETHER THE SENTENCES FOR THE SOLICITATION COUNTS

AND THE OTHER SENTENCES SHOULD HAVEvRAN CONCURRENTLY.



RELEVANT STATEMENT OF FACTS

Hinkson would incorporate herein the statement of
the case as outlined in his related § 2241 petition, and
his history of filings.

Hinkson was convicted in the United States District
Court for the District of Idaho in case no. 3:02-CR-142-RCT
for, inter alia, willful failure to file tax return, willful
failure to collect federal tax, misbranded drug, adulterated
device, structuring transactions to avoid reporting
requirements and aiding and abetting.

Hinkson was then charged and convicted in the United
States District Court for the District of Idaho in case no.
1:04-CR-127-RCT for three counts of solicitation to commit a
crime of violence (i.e., attempted murder for hire).

The sentencing court imposed a term of imprisonment
as follows: (1) 10, 10, and 10 years consecutive for each
solicitation count for an aggregate sentence of 30 years.

The sentencing court also imposed a consecutive sentence of
10 years for case no. 02-CR-142 and an additional term of
imprisonment for 3 years consecutive, for a total term of
imprisonment for 43 years or 516 months.

Since Hinkson's direct appeal and time for filing
a motion under 28 U.S.C. § 2255, the federal law has changed
thereby rendering his solicitation counts non-crimes of
violence, and rendering his unit of prosecution unjust as

the solicitation counts should have been just one unit of



prosecution, and thus, merged into one conviction and/or
sentence of 10 years instead of 30 years.

Additionally, Hinkson asks this Court to run his
sentences in case nos. 02-CR-142 and 04-CR-127 concurrently
because his offenses for solicitation are not 'crimes of

violence," and he is not a violent offender.



ARGUMENT AND AUTHORITIES

The Unit of Prosecution

On June 22, 2004, a federal'grand jury sitting in
the district of Idaho returned an eleven count indictment
against Hinkson for, inter alia, solicitation to commit a
"erime of violence," (i.e., murder for hire), in violation
of Title 18 U.S.C. § 1114 and 18 U.S.C. § 373. .

The introduction to the indictment outlined the

alleged plots as follows:

At all times relevant to this indictment:
1. The defendant, David Roland Hinkson, was the
owner and operator of the business Water 0Oz in
Idaho County, Idaho;
2. Edward J. Lodge was a United States District
Court Judge for the district of Idaho assigned
as the principal judge hearing federal civil and
criminal cases in the Northermand Central Divisions
of the District of Idaho, in Moscow and Coeurd'Alene;
3. Nancy D. Cook was an Assistant United States
Attorney (AUSA) for the District of Idaho assigned
to the Coeurd'Alene branch office and specifically
assigned to the grand jury investigation of and
- subsequent prosecution of defendant David Roland
Hinkson on federal criminal chérges arising out
of his operation of the business Water Oz in the
case titled United States of America v David Roland
Hinkson, Cr. No. 02-142-C-EJL; |
4. Steven M. Hines was the Internal Revenue Service,

- Criminal Investigation Division, Special Agent



assigned to the criminal investigation of

defendant David Roland Hinkson and his business,
Water 0z 4 '

5. Beginning in approximately the summer of 2000,
the Internal Revenue Service, Criminal Investigation
Division, through Special Agent Steven M. Hines,
initiated a criminal investigation into whether
defendant David Roland Hinkson had failed to file
income tax returns and to account for, collect and.
pay employment taxes for his Water Oz workers. In
the summer of 2000, Special Agent Hines sent
defendant David Roland Hinkson a letter informing
him of the criminal investigation;

6. In July Of 2001, Assistant United States Attorney
Nancy D. Cook caused grand jury subpoenas to be
prepared and served on certain Water Oz employees
for their appeérance at the grand jury in

Coeur d' Alene in:September of 2001 in connection
with the investigation into the defendant David
Roland Hinkson's tax violations. The subpoenas

bore AUSA Cook's name and were served by Special
Agent Hines. At least one Water Oz employee
discussed the requested grand jury appearance with
defendant David Roland Hinkson;

/. On April 16, 2002, defendant David Roland Hinkson
filed a civil suit against Special Agent Hines,

AUSA Cook, and others in the United States District
Court for the District of Idaho, Case No. CV-02-171-C.
The case ultimately was assigned to Judge Lodge.
8. On July 17, 2002, a federal grand jury in
Coeur d' Alene returned a 43 count indictment
charging defendant David Roland Hinkson with three
counts of failure to file an income tax return,

thirteen counts of failure to account for, collect



and pay over employment taxes, four counts of
introducing and causing to be delivered for
introduction into interstate commerce a
misbranded drug, four counts of introducing

and causing to be delivered for introduction
into interstate commerce an adulterated drug,
one count of introducing and causing to be
delivered for introduction into interstate
commerce a misbranded device, one count of
introducing and causing to be delivered for
introduction into interstate commerce an
adulterated device, sixteen counts of |
structuring financial transactions and one
count of criminal forfeiture.

9. On November 21, 2002, the defendant, David
Roland Hinkson, was arrested by Special Agent‘
Hines and others and made his initial appearance
on the charges contained in the July 17, 2002,
indictment. The criminal case also was assigned
to Judge Lodge.

10. On February 11, 2003, Judge Lodge dismissed

the civil case in its entirety.

See Attachment B (6/22/04 Indictment) .

The indictmént then went on to charge Hinkson with
multiple counts of violating 18 U.S5.C. § 373 (counts 1-9) and
two counts of violating 18 U.S.C. § 115 (counts‘lo-ll).

Hinkson proceéded to a jury trial on the charges
after-pléading not guilty. At trial, the jury acquitted
Hinkson on several counts, hung on others, and convicted

him on counts 7, 8, and 9. Those counts charged as follows:




Count Seven

"Paragraphs 1 through 10 of this indictment are
hereby realleged in their entirety and incorporated
by reference herein.

Between sbout December 2002 -and February 2003, the
precise date being unknown to the grand jury, in
the district of Idaho, the defendant, David Roland
Hinkson, with the intent that EJS (Elven Joe Swisher)
engage in conduct constituting a felony that has as
an element the use of physical force against the
person of anothér in violation of the laws of the
United States, and under circumstances strongly
corroborative of that intent, did solicit, command,
induce and endeavor to persuade EJS to engage in
such conduct, that is to murder United States
District Court Judge Edward J. Lodge, an officer

of the United States, in violation of Title 18
U.S.C. § 1114; in violation of Title 18 U.S.C.

§ 373." Attachment-B, P. 6.

Count Eight

Paragrahps 1 through 10 of this indictment are
hereby realleged in their entirety and incorporated
by reference herein.

Between about December 2002 and February 2003, the

precise date being unknown to the grand jury, in



Count Seven

"Paragraphs 1 through 10 of this indictment are
hereby realleged in their entirety and incorporated
by reference herein.

Between about December 2002 and February 2003, the
precise date being unknown to the grand jury, in
the district of Idaho, the defendant, David Roland
Hinkson, with the intent that EJS (Elven Joe Swisher)
engage in conduct constituting a felony that has as
an element the use of physical force agéinst the
person of anothér in violation of the laws of the
United States, and under circumstances strongly
corroborative of that intent, did solicit, command,
induce and endeavor to persuade EJS to engage in
such conduct, that is to murder United States
District Court Judge Edward J. Lodge, an officer

of the United States, in violation of Title 18
U.S.C. § 1114; in violation of Title 18 U.S.C.

§ 373." Attachment-B, P. 6.

Count Eight

Paragrahps 1 through 10 of this indictment are
hereby realleged in their entirety and incorporated
by reference herein.

Between about December 2002 and February 2003, the

precise date being unknown to the grand jury, in



the District of Idaho, the defendant, David Roland
Hinkson, with the intent that EJS engage in conduct
constituting a felony that bas as an element the
use of physical force against the person of
another in violation of the laws of the United
States, and under'circumstances strongly
corroborative of that intent, did solicit, command,
induce and endeavor to persuade EJS to engage in
such conduct, that is to murder Assistant United
States Attorney Nancy D. Cook, an officer of the
United States, in vielation.of Title 18, U.5.C.

§ 11145 in wvielation -of Title 18, U.8.C. § 373.

Attachment-B, P. 7.

Count Nine

Paragraphs 1 through 10 of this indictment are
hereby realleged in their entirety and incorporated
by reference herein.

Between about December 2002 and February 2003, the
precise date being unknown to the grand jury, in
the District of Idaho, the defendant, David Roland
Hinkson, with the intent that EJS engage in conduct
constituting a felony that has as an element the
use of physical force against the person of another
in vViolation of the laws of the United States, and

under circumstances strongly corroborative of that

10



intent, did solicit, command, induce aﬁd endeavor
to persuade EJS td engage in such conduct, that
is to murder Internal Revenue Service Special
Agent Steven M. Hines, an officer of the United
States, in violation of Title 18 U.S.C. § 1114;

in violation of Title 18 U.S.C. § 373. See

Attachment-B, P. 7-8.

After the jury tréil, Hinkson was convicted only
on the three Elven Joe Swisher counts (i.e., counts 7,8 &1).1
And while fhe evidence shows that Swisher alleged that Hinkson
attempted to solicit him to commit these offenses, Hinkson
was charged, tried and convicted of three separate units'of
prosecution. Moreover, he was also sentenced to three separate
units of prosecution (i.e., he received three 10-year sentences
consecutive on each count 7, 8, and 9).

Under the law today, Hinkson would only be prosecuted
and sentenced as one unit of prosecution. See United States v
Gordon, 2017 U.S. App. Lexis 22249, No. 16-1896 (1st Cir. 2017).
Specifically, in Gordon the defendant was charged with multiple
counts of murder-for-hire, convicted, and sentenced to
consecutive terms of imprisonment, as was Hinkson. On appeal,

the Court of Appeals reversed holding that an indictment

1. During Hinkson's criminal trial and other proceedings including the
grand jury proceedings, Elven Joe Swisher repeated committed perjury and

comnitted crimes, some of which led to Swisher's own prosecution in

case no. CR-07-182-S-BLW, U.S. District Court, Idsho & Montana.

11



containing five charges of murder-for-hire was multiplicitous
and defendanf was entitled to resentencing because the proper
unit of prosecution under the murder-for-hire statute was a
single plot. Congress did not intend to punish separately
such crimes. Id. | i

The First went on to state that "in reaching the
conclusion that the correct unit of prosecution is plot-centric,
‘we echo the only other published circuit court decision squarely
on point. The Sixth Circuit so held in Unifed States v Wynn,

987 F.2d 354, 359 (6th Cir. 1993), ruling that the appropriate
unit of ﬁrosecution under § 1958(a) is the number of . [plots]]
to murder someone."

In the instant case, Hinkson was charged with
plotting to murder three individuals. Howevef, there was only
one [plot] involved with the case, and one alleged hitman.
Therefore, like in Gordon and Wynn, Hinkson should have only been
convicted or sentenced for onme conmspiracy plot, not three,
because while there was three alléged victims, there was
only one:alleged plot to murder-for-hire.

Additionally, in Alaimalo v United States, 636
F.3d 1092 (9th Cir. 2011) the court held that if a prisoner
did not have an unobstructed chance to present his innocence
claim in his first § 2255 motion, he could raise that claim
in.a 28 ‘U.58,0+-8 2241

In the case at bar, Hinkson did not have an
unobstructed chance to present the instant claim in any

previous § 2255 or § 2241 petition, as Gordon was not

12



decided until November 7, 2017. And Gordon, while a First
Circuit case, establishes that Hinkson's three charges

to allegedly solicit Swisher to ﬁurder three persons, are
multiplicous. This ruling is a Circuit Court decision that,
while not binding on the ‘Ninth or Sixth Circuilts, establishes
that Hinkson's 30-year sentence should only be 10-years.
Thus, such a significant increase in the prison term,
presents a fundamental miscarriage of justice:.

Moreover, the Supreme Court has recently recognized
that prisoners can éctually be innocent of the sentence
imposed upon them. See Johnson v United States, 135 8. Ct.
2551 (2015). So whether the indictment is multiplicéus and
should have only charged oné conspiracy offense, and
whether, as a result, the three ten year sentences should
be ran concurrently, Hinkson believes that he is actually
innocent of the two additional § 373 offenses, and thus,
the additional 20 year sentence imposed.

In sum, Hinksoﬁ's three 18 U.S.C. § 373 convictions
should merge and his 30 year sentence should be feduced to
10 years, because there was oﬁly [one plot] in the murder-
for-hire indictment under counts 7, 8 and 9. As with Gordom,
Congress did not intend to punish Hinkson three separate
times for one conspiracy plot as alleged.in the indictment.
The indictment is duplicious in the case at bar as well.
Therefore, this case presents a clear fundamental miscarriage

of justice sufficient to warrant habeas corpus relief.



Crime of Violence

Throughout this case, the offenses of conviction

were labled 'crimes of violence." See Attachments A & B

(Indictment and Criminal Judgment). See also Presentence
Investigation Report (PSR).2

Specifically, the indictment alleged that "David
Roland Hinkson, with the intent that EJS engage in conduct
constituting a felony that has as an element the use of
physical force against the person of another in violation

of laws of the United States...." Attachment-B (counts 7,

8 and 9).
Additionally, the criminal judgment reflects that
Hinkson was convicted for "solicitation to commit a crime

of violence,'" under counts 7, 8 and 9. Attachment-A.

However, federal courts are now holding that murder-for-hire
is not a crime of violence. See United States Vv Cody Herr,
7016 U.S. Dist. Lexis 144201, No. 16;cr-10038—IT (Dist. Mass
Oct. 18, 2016). See also United States v McCollum, 2018 BL
94296, 4th Cir., No. 17-4296 (March 20, 2018)(holding that
conspiracy to commit murder 1is not a crime of violence).
Thus, counts 7, 8 and 9 are not crimes of violence,

and therefore, Hinkson is entitle to habeas cOrpus relief

9. Please note that FBOP Policy prohibits federal prisoners

from possessing their PSRs in prison.
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to correct his sentence and judgment.

Concurrent Sentences

Because the three counts of solicitation to commit
murder were considered and labled "crimes of violence," the
sentencing court ran Hinkson's sentences consecutive to each
other and consecutive to case no. 02-cr-00142-TCT. Because
the solicitation to commit murder offenses are not crimes

of violence, Hinkson is entitled to resentencing.

CONCLUSION

For the foregoing reasons, Hinkson respectfully
moves the Court to issue a writ of habeas corpus, and for

any other relief deemed just and proper.

Respectfully submitted

PR e D 2 {4
A Legt /(i%’?’ﬂ/% {%M/AW‘>
Pavid Roland Hinkson, Pro Se
Reg. No. 08795-023
USP McCreary
P.0. Box 3000
Pine Knot, KY 42635
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ATTACHMENT A

A. Amended Judgment In a Criminal Case (re: David R. Hinkson)
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onireD sTATES OF avErica 10 S 13 PH.3B4DED JUDGMENT IN A CRIMINAL CASE

BOISE, e
, .IDAQQSEMW: 302—CR—00142—RCT

DAV[D ROLAND HINKSON - e | T e T, 1:04-CR-00127-RCT
P - . USM Numbar: . 08795-023 :
Datc of Original Judgment.. J_unss 2005 4 - Cuytis Smith, Steven Afgdcrscn -
(@r Dats of Last Amendsd Jndzmmt) ' Dmam’xmmcy S
Reason for Amendment: ' et

) Corrmion of Seenwos on Remend (14 VE.C. 3742({)0) md(z))

] Modifiastion of Supaccixion Condivions (18 U.8.C, ;s 3563(:) or amc.»
0 Redustion of Sontenss for Changed Cirsumatances (Fod X. Celu

‘[0 Moditioazion ol Impoesd Taym of Empuleonmass for Expeandinag and

PO .+ Compelling Rensons (1% U.8.C. § 3582(c)(1))-
[ Coirertion of Senienoe by smmum; C9vn (Fed, R Com. P ‘JS(’L)) D Modificstion of Impoasd Term of Imprisonment fur Retroactive Amendmoin(g)
X Oonreticn of Secsanse for Clarsal Misuke (Fed, R CA. P 36) - v Senening Suldilisu (18 US.C. §33F2ED
. AL : : * [] Direet Molion to Distrist Coust Pursusnt o D 25U.8.C, f 2255 or
) 15 US.C. B3s590XT) ;
O Moditicstion of Rextimtion omr(l% USC§. 3664)
THE DEFENDANT.

¥ pleaded puilty to conni(s) 17 and 26 of the Indictment in Case 43:02 CR00142RCT
[J pleaded nolo contendere to count(s) :
which was sccepted by the court. : o Y R
wes found guilty on count(s) -3, 4:16, 31, 33:38, 40:42 of the Indictment in Coge #3; :02:CR-00142-RCT and coutits £ Ly
7,8 and 9 of the Superseding Indietment in Case #1: 04-CR-00127-RCT after 2 plea of not guilly. -
The defendant is adjudicated gmlw of these oﬂ'enscs

26 § 7203  Cuge #3:03-CRH0142-RCT. Willfud Fuilure'to File Tax Relum ) o 4/17/2000 e 1-3
26 § 7202 Oage #3:02-CRA00142-RCT. Willful Paiture to Colfect Federal Taxes - 11/1/2000 4-16
215331 () Caxo #3:02-CR-00142-RCT. Misbrandsd Drug : ' © U 13212002 .17
T218331(® - ‘Caso #3:02-CRO0142-RCT. Adutterwted Deviee - o 4/04/2002 fn 26
31 § § 5324(8)(3) Ciso #3:02-CR-00142-RCT. Srrucewring 'mmxmlamu Aveld xapumng : . 2/23/2001 ) 31.33-38, 4042
()2 &8 52 Requiremens and Alding tod Absting s " A :
18 §373 . - Case K1:04-CRA0127-RCT. Balleltation {o Lemmuc:hv.a orvmmw ' February 2005 - . 7
1B § 373 Cass #1:04CR0012HRCT- Solicitstion o Comrnius Crlms of Violonees - Februacy 2003, . 8
18 §373 | Caedn: m-oom-m Bsﬂcﬂmqniecmn&mnof\’mlmm ; . February 2003 ‘; 9
“The dd‘endant is senteniced asprcmded in pages 1. 5 of this Jndgmem. The BenIence is imposed pursuam ©
the Scmendnchfmm Act of 1984, e ,
X 'The dofendent has becn found not guilty on coum(s) 4 5,6,10 & #)1of the Sw Qg‘ggemgg Inﬂlctmem jn Cagg ":ﬂ;O -CR-00127-RCT.

No verdict on conntg 1,2 & #3 of ths Indictment in Case #1: 04-CR-00127-RCT. 2

"X Count(s) ;8,39,29&L,ZZ,ZS,M,;S,_?,‘I;S, [ is X eredismissed en u\c mouon of the United Stafes.
29.‘.’:0 32,a.nd 39in Casa #3 OZ-CR-OOMZ-RCT and counts 1,2 & 3 in Case #1 :04-CR-10127-RCT,

W ddme mul m muxmo \ify the United sl:lm s'.: t%us ﬁtnmwﬂ'ﬁlw dave of any chmﬁ of fom.t?;, ggxggm '
on, €9 3 m [\ e
g:n’?mﬁloﬁg. %m c:dmz ok d mz% mﬁs'ULﬁ Te8 atmnsy al ¢hm¢a£ in eooncmlc mrcums Ariges. ;
' Juncs 2005

Datc of Imposition of Judgruent ~~ 8
‘ ] ' ’ . ,.. _\- %

Richgrd C Tallmen, Unifed Stateg ercmt Judge
Wams and Title of Judge -

Wﬁﬁ@ /0'5
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USCA" 9TH CIRCUIT ID.' i'S'?Méés”s .

~IUN 1?‘

g’
Sha#t 2 — Imprsonmant e b 25 ot
. . < . - Fodpmem —Pege ___2-  of g
DEFENDANT: =~ DAVID RONALD HINKSON T T
¥ . 3:02-CR-00142-RCT
CASENUMBER: ' 1i04.CR-00127RCT. = .
IMPRISONMENT

The defendant is hereby committed to the cstody of the United ‘Stares Bureau of Prisons to be Imprisonsd for a’
 total tarm of: 516 months, - Thz total yerm it Case # 3:02-CR-00142-RCT consists of: teems of

26; terms of 60 months cach on counts 4-16; end terms of 120 menths

12 months each on counts 1-3,17 &

d Lo cach on counts 31,33-38,40-42, All such terms in.Case #
3:02=CR-00142-RCT shall be served concurren with sach other but consecutive to ths imprisonment im&osed in Case #1:04-CR-
00127-RCT. The total werm in Case #1:04-CR-00127-RCT consists of terms

( RC g of 120 months cach on counts 7, 8 and 9, which shall un

conseculively to one another and consecuﬁvct{.to the cripunal Case #3:02-CR-00142-RCT. An additional 36 months shall run -

consecutively to counts 7,8 9 pursuent to 18 US.C.§ 3 147, The total imprisownent term of 396 months impesed in Cese ¥1:04- -

RO ghsh nof begin 16 run vmdl the Delondant hes ompleled gervies o
in, Case ¥3:02.CR-00142-RCT. : y

% 'The court makes th following recommendations 10 the Bureau of Prisons:
T‘hazgxe deferidant be tredited with all time served, from 1ha dare of hlg drrest
classified ag o high rizk inmiate who refuses 1o comply with instituizongl scouri

f the totel {mprisonment term of 120 months imposed )

o A4 2003, 424 thas the dégcndmt b dniclly
_ 3 ruleg, who Poses k continuing GRNKET 1 Witnesse:
and Fedorgl oficer, and who poscs anisk of flight with gccess 1o noney secreted in foreign ani aecounts, TR M TRRIIcR
The defendant is to be placed [n the maxinmum ssQqurity facllity at Florence, Colorado. ' .

X The defondant is romanded o the custody of the Unitod States Mershil. -
O The defendant shall surrender to the United Staies Marshal for this district:

0O « : ' Q0 am O pm o
[ s notificd by.the United States Marshal, ‘

[ - The defendant shell gurrendes for servico of 'scmcncc at (he institution designated by the Bureau of Prisons:.
0O befors 2 p.m. on e ' '

0 a5 notificd by the United States Marthal.
O] as notified by the Probation or Pratrial Services Office.

: RETURN
Thave execated this judgment a5 fallows! A

Defendant delivered on o

, with 2 cextified copy of this judgmedt.

UNITED STATES MARSHAL

)

By

SEFUTY UNITED STALES MAISHAL
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AD245C “TRvADva)T w@xak\ﬂnwm‘ﬂm : JUN 12805 ' ‘,g‘.§_0-9_,]\l]9__- 002. P.04
. Shth — Suparvised Releuss ) . . ; i oy B Ao o N
. N ) ~ Tudgment—Page ©3  of I3
DEFENDANT: DAVID RONALD HINKSON. | ' " b

. 3i02-CR-00142-RCT
CASENUMBER:  1:03.CR-00127-RCT

SUPERVISED RELEASE

Upon refease from mpn.sunmun. ths defendant shnll bec o supervised refegse for a term of  3yeats,

ararinofly u Rupervigsd xaloase on 13, 17 & 26 inCess #3 02-CR-00142-RCT. 3 years Jease 6 4216, 31,
313,38, 404 'ln Cngo ¥3:0 zfgk-om qﬁ@? Ali suc?tcrms of st_tge gp.clmm 0 be saweﬁ cong:\?tonﬂy wf& a;fé aﬁc;q ying

3 yeuts sapervised reledst &5 coum 8 and 9 in Cas

27-RCT, Al apch erms of muparvis galeuc 10 be served
nr:umnﬂy with one ano T, md ¢ currzmxy ith the thm yzaf farr of su;Sdrvisaa relense in Cage % 02~ Mom.am-,

* The defendant must raport o the prohatmn oﬂice in t.he district 10 wlnehthe defendam is relsased within 72 hcmrs of release from the
custody of the Buresn of Prigons. - .

Tha Aafendant ghall not cummit enothar federal, state or local cnmc ;

The defendant ehal) not unlawfully possess 2 controlled substance. The defe—miant shall refram from any u:ﬂawful se of a controllcd

substance, The defendant ghall submit to one drug tast thhin 15 dzxys of release front lmpnsonmmt and at least two perlodic drug ests
thereafier, s determined by the courl.

X  ‘The above drug testing condition is suspended bused on Ths cmn‘t 5 dcte’rminnhon thet the defendam pose< alow nsk of
future pubstance gbuse. (Check, if applicable.) °

The defendant shall not possess a firearm, destructive device, or finy other daugerous Weapon. (Check, it apphw.ble D)
The dofendant shall cooperaie in the collection of DNA as directed by the probadon officer, (Check, if e.pplios,ble )

The dafendant shall register with the state sex offender mg}.straimn apency in the state where the defandant xesx.dns, works, oris @
st,udcm, gs dirscied by the probaton officer. (Cheek, It applicabls,) :

The dsfendant shall pamcipate in an approved program for domestié Violencs. (Chieck, if applicable.)

Betause this judgment impoges 8 fine and restiturion, 41 is 2 condiuon of :upcmsad release that the d&fcnda.m pay itin accoxdancc
-with the Schedule of Paymments sheet of this judgment, -

" The defendant must oomply wlththe gtandard conditlons that have been adopted bythis court as well as with any additional eundmnns

O X«

. ‘on t_ho altashod pagc

‘ STANDARD COND[TIONS OF SUPERVISION
S ths defendaut shall not leave the judicial district without the permission of the court or probation officer; |

YR &:&m& shall report to tlu proba’unn officer and shall submu B txuthﬁﬂ and eamplete written rvpcm wilthmthc first five days
]

3) the defendant shall aniwer tmthmm all inquh*ies By ths probation cmcer and follow the instmuom ofths probmen officer;
4) the defendant shall suppart his o7 her dependents and meet other family responsibilities: ~

) the defendam shall work :cgula:ly at & lawful occupatwn., nnless eumscd b} the probation officer for sd\oahng u-aming. or other
acceptable reusons;

6) tho defendant shall notify the probation of.ncar at least ten days prior to BIW change in resldanccs or employmem,

7 the dofendany shall refrain from excossive vse of afcoho} end shall not purchase, possess, uss, distibute, or admtuistc.r any
controlled substance or Ay pmphzmaliﬁ related to any controllcd subslances; except ae presoribed by & phiyloian, -

8) (he defendaht shall not rmqumt places wheré controlled, substanocs are nkgany sold, used, distxibuted, or adnﬁmswred

9) the defendant xhall nol associate with any pcrsons engaged in crirminal activity and shall not assoclats wnh any pcxson convicted of
a felony, uniess gtantcd permission to do 50 by the probation ofhicer;

10) * the defendant shiall perrmit a robatlon officer to vistt hira or her at amy time ai bome or elsewhere and shall TTait canﬁscauo 14
? any contraband obsopr%ed inp in view of the probation officer; - = Ao

'11)  the defendant shall notify the probation offlcer wirhin sevanry-two hours of being arresied or questioned by alaw mlforcemcm officer,

12)  the defandant shell 0ot epter im0 sy agreement 10. act as ap informer ora special agem of a law enforcamcm agency without the
parmirgion of the court; and

13) - asdirectsd by the probation ofﬁcor the dsfendant shall notify thixd parties of risks that ma s occasioned b t}w defendant's crirninal
) Elrécx:’rd or pmona{m higtory or characteristics and hﬁa cugu ths%aﬁon officer W6 n& such nouﬁcZuo'\s and (o cosnﬁrm ?h

dcfendan.t p compliance With such notification :equiremmi.
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DEFENDANT:. . DAVID RONALD HINKSON = S g

T eea BT RITTRARYR 2:02-CR-00142-RCT . =~
CASENUMBER:  ~:08.CR-00127-RCT .

et SPECIAL CONDITIONS OF SUPERVISION.

1) Dofendent shall comply with the rules and regulations of the Probation Depariment. . -

4) Defendant shall not possess & firearm of other denigerous weepen. P e 1

'3y Péfendasnt shall provids the probation officer with access 10 21y raquested financial information.

4) Defendant sball not incur now credit charges o omen additional linss of credit without the approval £ the probatien office
-uaﬂcsa he defendant is in compliance with the inst;l t payment schedale. . a_ppn":v N ;pfo T i ;

fficer and ;u’omii w seizure of any contraband found therein,

%) Defendant shall submitto 2 search of his person, place of regidence, oF autorobile &t the direction of thc U.S. Probation
6) The defendant sha'll;c_oogeratc Wi@x'th’e IRS in 1payin,'g'; his back taxes owed, Also, he shall fils any and all tax yeturns
: requ:r‘qd by law and maintain compliance-with ai appliceble tax laws and provide the probation ofi’xcer with verlfication of his

7) Defendant shall p_ar&ci%%ie in mcatal health counseling as girccted by the U.S. Probation Officer. The costs of such
treatment shall be paid by th the defepdant and govemmeént bascd upon the defendant’s ability to-pay for treatment.

8) Dufcn.dm‘.i shall pay the special gasessment, fine 2nd the restitution cbligation that Is imposed by thig judgment and an
monies that wmalnpugmgaid ngthe somenencement of the term of sypervised release ghall bepmadc plyable to the Clerk offhz

U.S, District Conrt, 550 W, Fort Street, MSC 039, Boise, ldaho, 83724, The dafandant shell complete all financial payments
110 later than September 6, 2005, R : , T - .

6) Defendant, his agents, managers pﬁice:é_, and responsible pprsqﬂs operating defendant’s sale pro rietorship under the name
atcfgé shall cooperats with i?qod and Drug Administration i maintaining and insuring compﬁance‘ by WaterQz with al}
.- Food and Drug Act laws and regulations. . ¥ o ' : :

f

'Sp_e"ci}:li conditions of supervised reloase shall supersede any standerd condition thet is inconsistent with the speciel
conditions. o y s : -
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S—MmlMonum :
- n e - Tudgment - Tags e s, o £
DEFBNDANT: : DAVID RDNMaD HlN_KSOl\ - '

. 3:02-CR-00142-RCT
CASENUMBBR. Nl 104-CR—00127-RCT

CRIMU\AL MONETARY PENALTIES

The d.eihndam niust pay the wotal cnmmal monmxypenaltxes under tha b&hedule of paymeuts on Shest 6.

TOTALS -8 2 72500 - - i § 100,000.00 R 720.00
Special assgesmuent $2,425.00 s imposed on Case #3: :02-CR-00142-RCT.

Specisl asucspment $300.00, Fing §100,000.00, Restinution §720.00 18 un\powd on Case #17 04-CR-00127-RCT :

| Thedauanﬂcnofrosmﬁonu deferred - A.n Amandad Judgmenr in a Crrm(nal Case (AO 245C) will be entered
~ afersuch detxnummon. :

‘ P
X The defe.miam must make rcstlmion (lnsludmg comnmity restitation) td the following payess in the amcunbiistzd bclow '

It thc defendant mak&: EP artlal paymem each payes shall rc.cowe ail eppro xmlatclv gro?omnncd & mext, uxﬂess spacxﬁed Uﬁl&msc

in the prioity order orparcenw cpaymcnt cotumn below. However. purswmt to L8 T, §3664(3),a nonfedera] victims mustoe pait
before thc nited Stnts& is paid,

o Comt d 10 the [m;;ual cnue Sg 1cd Cle Dm mn the collection of all back taxes, interest, and ena]ﬁzs owed by he -
Bll uﬁﬁj 0 pdato: i!org m;ﬁ the Conrt daclines 1o ordet n.slihuhoﬁ of such \.psscs ip (hese rm}fﬂ

ﬁ::neﬁtx\g canas 1ha amourtd ¢ &8 ayo sub uial ould commplioate anc‘iou&de &gro!ong esmcncl?&;fow;w{uhim

on order where &n SUSTRALYe clvil aenoct on meFhanism 1; reaaily wmam 18 U.8,C, § 3663 (a(LyE)al)
Stoven Hinos e 730,00 , 100%
TOTALS . o 87000

O Resﬂnuicn ammmr orde:ed pursuan: 10 plaa agmemem §:

X The def endant musr, pay mterest ‘on restitution and & fine of roore tham §2, 500 unless the restitution oI ﬁn.e is - paid in fall before a

fiftecnth day after the date of the judgment, pursoant to 18 U,6. C. § 3612(0). All of the payment oprlcms on, Sheet 6 mavbe subjec
1o penaltios for AelBqUENCY snd default, pv.rrsuantto 18 U 8.C.§ 3612(3)

[0 The cout determined that the defondant does ot have the abﬂuy to pay mtaxcst and It s o.rdm‘bd that
| [} ﬁwhnmstraquirmﬁiuwaivedfcnhc a. ﬁm [ - restitution.
O the intereat requirement forthe [J fimo D resunmon 15 modified a5 follows:
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: nudgmers —Prge =6 of §
-DEFENDANT - DAVID RONALD H}NKSON N . i

i 302 2-CR-00142-RCT -
CASE NUMBER: . 1044:&-00127&0‘1‘

SCHEDULE OF PAYMENTS

vmg aspessed thz Jefendant’s ability to pa.y paymmL of the total cnmmal mone:ta:y pamldes are due 28 fonows

A X Lwnpsum pavmm of §._$100. 000  due unmadiamly, palance due
X not later than Sglcmhcr 6, 2005 . :
O i accordancs C, D D, E oo O F below, or ' i

B O Paymen!: o0 begin m;mcdmtaly (may be corabined mth Oc, Oop,or OF below); of

C [1 Paymentin equel - (e.g., weekly, moithly, qnancr‘q) Ipstaliments of § ;oovers 'pcrlod of
(e.8- momhs oryeaxs). 1o commense (e:g, 3001 60 days) after the date of thxs judgment; of
p [0 Faymentin equal i’ " (e weekly, raonthly, quarteﬂy) installments of $ over a peried of

,ﬁ‘—.
(-8 mcmln .o years), 10 COIMNENCS (e, g., 30 or 60 dzys) efter relenss from imprisonmem. a’

aa et
- term of gupervxsmn, or

E O Paynent during the term of supcrvtsed release will coxfunmcc within  _ (&.g., 30 o5 60 days) afier release from
jroprisonment. The court will get the paymendt plan based on en nssf:smcnt of the defendant’s ability 1o. pay at that ting,; or

¥ X Special instructions rega:dmg the paymem of mmmal monetary penaltics!

$2,725.00 al assessroent nd $720. 00 restitution axc due imracdiatcly. Payments L0 v mado o Clerk of the Courly District -
T4aho, 550 st St, MSC 039, Bowe D8 7 24 Clerk shall disburse resututlon payments o the wictim, [RS Spesial Agent

tcVe:n Hmcs
Unl {he sonrt ewgmm orﬁorad om:rwisc, im oseiun rlscmgfnt, criminel monglary penaluies is dye duri
ent, 5 alﬁ those pe\gmenu ﬁ gﬁh( cheml Bure:m of Pl?sgns' Inmate mﬁ
stpnnsibﬂit;' Progrm :re ma m cle:ko tha o

The defendant shall rwelve credit fox A payments previously made wward any cmmnal monetary panaldes mposed.

=

a Jcim: nnd Soveral

Defendant and Co Dsfendam Names and Case ‘Nurbers (mcxuamg defendant rumber), Total Amount, Joini'; and Several Amcsun’(,
mdwtte:pondinlpw. if appropriste. . ce b ' ‘

X The defendsnt ahall pay the cont of prosgpution of § 13 741,54, due on or before Septerer & 2008,

a

“The defondint shau poy fono wiog court com.(s) ;
X The defendant shan forfcit the dsfmdant ¢ infozest in tho following propcm' 10 the United States: -

$ 135.500,00 inU.S. cmmncy Y previously ordered by fhc Court o March 25 2005. n Case Number K3 OZ-CR-OO 142-RCT

ents shallb in the fo oxden: sschmeni, 2) regtitution principal xestmmo interest, (4) fi
(5 ﬁnzm{ercst. Gajpgommu e slr]lmticn, 0] penames and (8) éc?c.ts lh\;lucﬁmgco'stp f:r(zgcmnion an%ioou y (;s) = pmmpal'




ATTACHMENT B

B. Indictment in case no. 1:04-CR-127—RCT (Solicitation to

Commit a Crime of Violence).



Case 1:04-cr-@7—RCT Document 1 Filed 06/2% Page 1 of 10

BARRY M. SABIN

* ACTING UNITED STATES ATTORNEY TR
MICHAEL P. SULLIVAN '
SPECTAL ASSISTANT UNITED STATES ATTORNEY

DENA DOUGLAS-PATTERSON

TRIAL ATTORNEY .

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
601 D STREET, NW

WASHINGTON, DC 20005

TELEPHONE: (202) 353-3116

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE DISTRICT OF TDAHO

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, ) crvo. ORO&-0127-C- BLW
) |
Plaintiff, ) INDICTMENT
)
Vs. )
)
DAVID ROLAND HINKSON, )
)
Defendant. )
)
THE GRAND JURY CHARGES:
INTRODUCTION -

At all times relevant {o this indiciment:

1. The defendant, DAVID ROLAND HINKSON, was the owner and operator of the business
Water Oz in Idaho County, Idaho;

2. Bdward J. Lodge was a United Statcs District Court Judge for the District of Idaho

assigned as the principal judge hearing federal civil and criminal cases in the Northern and Central

Divisions of the District of Tdaho, in Moscow and Coeur d’ Alene;




Case 1:04-cr-®7-RCT Document 1 Filed O6/2® Page 2 of 10

3. Nancy D. Cook was an Assistant United States Attorney (AUSA) for the District of Idaho
assigned to the Coeur d’ Alene branch office and specifically assigned to the grand jury Investigation
of and subsequent prosecution of defendant DAVID ROLAND HINKSON on federal criminal
charges arising out of his operation of the busincss Water Oz in the case titled United States qf
America v. David Roland Hinkson, Cr. No. 02-142-C-EJIL;

4. Steven M. Hines was the Internal Revenue Service, Criminal Investigation Divisioﬁ,
Special Agent assigned to the criminal investigation of defendant DAVID ROLAND HINKSON and
his business, Water Ov;

5. Beginning in approximately the summer 0f 2000, the Internal Revenue Service, Criminal
Investigation Division, (hrough Special Agent Steven M. Hines, initiated a criminal investigation
into whether defendant DAVID ROLAND HINKSON had failed to file income tax returns and to
account for, collect and pay employment taxes for his Water Oz workers. In the summer of 2000,
Special Agent Hines sent defendant DAVID ROLAND HINKSON a letter informing him of the
criminal investigation,

6. In July of 2001, Assistant United States Attorney Nancy D. Cook caused grand jury
subpoenas to be prepared and served on certain Water Oz employees for their appearance at the
grand jury in Coeur d’Alenc in Scptember of 2001 in connection with the investigation into
. defendant DAVID ROLAND HINKSON’s tax violations. The subpoenas bore AUSA Cook’s name
and were served by Special Agent Hines. At least one Water Oz employee discussed the requested
grand jury appearance with defendant DAVID ROLAND HINKSON.

7. On April 16, 2002, defendant DAVID ROLAND HINKSON filed a civil suit against

Special Agent Hines, AUSA Cook, and others in the United States District Court for the District of

Idaho, Case No. CV 02-171-C. The case ultimately was assigned to Judge Lodge.
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3. Nancy D. Cook was an Assistant United States Attorney (AUSA) for the District of Idaho
assigned to the Coeur d’ Alene branch office and specifically assigned to the grand jury Investigation

of and subsequent prosecution of defendant DAVID ROLAND HINKSON on federal criminal

charges arising out of his operation of the busincss Water Oz in the case titled United States qf
America v. David Roland Hinkson, Cr. No. 02-142-C-EJL;

4. Sieven M, Hines was the Internal Revenue Service, Criminal Investigation Division,
Special Agent assigned to the criminal investigation of defendant DAVID ROLAND HINKSON and
his business, Water Oz,

5. Beginning in approximately the summer 0f2000, the Internal Revenue Service, Criminal
Investigation Division, (hrough Special Agent Steven M. Hines, initiated a criminal investigation
into whether defendant DAVID ROLAND HINKSON had failed to file income tax returns and to
account for, collect and pay employment taxes for his Water Oz workers. In the summer of 2000,
Special Agent Hines sent defendant DAVID ROLAND HINKSON a letter informing him of the
criminal investigation,

6. In July of 2001, Assistant United States Attorney Nancy D. Cook caused grand jury
subpoenas to be prepared and served on certain Water Oz employees for their appearance at the
grand jury in Coeur d’Alenc in Scptember of 2001 in connection with the investigation into
- defendant DAVID ROLAND HINKSON’s tax violations., The subpoenas bore AUSA Cook’s name
and were served by Special Agent Hines. At least one Water Oz employee discussed the requested
grand jury appearance with defendant DAVID ROLAND HINKSON.

7. On April 16, 2002, defendant DAVID ROLAND HINKSON filed a civil suit against

Special Agent Hines, AUSA Cook, and others in the United States District Court for the District of

Idaho, Case No. CV 02-171-C. The case ultimately was assigned to Judge Lodge.
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8. On July 17, 2002, a federal grand jury in Coeur d’Alene returned a 43 count indictment
charging defendant DAVID ROLAND HINKSON with three counts of failure to file an income tax
return, thirteen counts of failurc to account for, collect and pay over employment taxes, four counts
of introducing and causing to be delivered for introduction into intersiate commerce a misbranded
drug, four counts of introducing and causing to be delivered for introduction into interstate
commerce an adulterated drug, one count of introducing and causing to be delivered for introduction
into interstate commerce a misbranded device, one count of introducing and causing to be delivered
for introduction into interstatc commerce an adulterated device, sixteen counis of structuring
financial transactions and one count qf criminal forfeiture.

9. On November 21, 2002, the defendant, DAVID ROLAND HINKSON, was arrested by
Spceial Agent Hines and others and made his initial appearance on the charges contained in the July
17,2002, indictment. The criminal case also was assigned to Judge Lodge.

10. On February 11, 2003, Judge Lodge dismissed the civil case in its entirety.

COUNT ONE
(Violation 18 U.S.C. §373)

Paragraphs 1 through 10 of this indictment are hereby realleged in their entirety and
incorporaled by reference herein.

In or about January of 2003, the precise datc being unknown to thc; grand jury, in the District
of Idaho, the defendant, DAVID ROLAND HINKSON, with the intent that TH engage in conduct
constituting a felony that has as an element the use of physical force against the persén of another
in violation of the laws of the United States, and under circumstances strongly corroborative of that

intent, did soligit, command, induce and endeavor to persuade JH to cngage in such conduct, that s,

to murder United States District Court Judge Edward J. Lodge, an officer of the United States, in
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violation of Title 18, Uniled Statcs Code, Section 1114;in violation of Title 18, United States Code,

Section 373.

JOUNT TWO
(Violation 18 U.8.C. §373)

Paragraphs 1 through 10 of {his indictment are hereby realleged in their entirety and
incorporated by rbfcrc_nce herein.

In or about January of 2003, the precisc date being unknown to the grand jury, in the District
of 1daho, the defendant, DAVID ROLAND HINKSON, with the intent that JH engage in conduct
constituting a felony that has as an element {he usc of physical force against the person of another
in violation of the laws of the United States, and under circumstances strongly corroborative of that
intcnt, did solicit, command, induce and endeavor to persuade JH to engage in such conduct, that is
to murder Assistani United States Attorncy Nancy D. Cook, an officer of the United States, In
violation of Title 18, United Stgtes Code, Section 1114;in violation of Title 18, United States Code,
Section 373,

COUNT THREE
(Violation 18 U.S.C. §373)

Paragraphs 1 through 10 of this indictment are hereby realleged in their cntirety and
incorporated by reference herein.

In or about January of 2003, the precise date being uriknown to the grand jury, in the District
of 1daho, the defendant, DAVID ROLAND HDIKSON, with the intent that JH cngage in conduct
conslituting a felony that has as an elemnent the use of physical force against the person of another
in violation of the laws of the United States, and under circumstances strongly corroborative of that

intent, did solicit, command, induce and endeavor to persuade JH to engage in such conduct, that is

1o murder Internal Revenue Service Sp ecial Agent Steven M. Hines, an officer of the United States,
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in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1114; in violation of Title 18, United States

Code, Section 373.

COUNT FOUR
" (Violation 18 U.S.C. §373)

Paragraphs 1 (hrough 10 of this indictment are hercby realleged in their entirety and
incorporated by reference herein.

On or about March 17, 2003, the precisc date being unknown to the grand jury, in the Diatrict
of Tdaho, the defendant, DAVID ROLAND HINKSON, with the intent that JH engage in conduct
constituting a felony that has as an element the usc of physical force against the person of another
in violation of the laws of the United States, and under circumslances strongly corroborative of that
iﬁtcnt, did solicit, command, induce and endeavor to persuade JH to engage in such conduct, that is
to murder United States District Court Judge Edward J. Lodge, an officcr of the United States in
violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1114; in violation of Title 18, United States Code,

Section 373.

COUNT FIVE
(Violation 18 U.8.C. §373)

Paragraphs 1 through 10 of this indictmeni are hereby realleged in their entirety and
incorporated by reference herem. |

On or about March 17, 2003, the precise date being unknown to the grand jury, in the District
~ of Idaho, the defendant, DAVID ROLAND HINKSON, with the intent that JH engage in conduct
constituting a felony that has as an element the use of physical force agains! the person of another
in violation of the laws of the United States, and under circumstances strongly corroborative of that

intent, did solicit, command, induce and endeavor to persuade JH to engage in such conduct, that s

to murder Assistant United Statcs Attorney Nancy D. Cook, an officer of the Uniled States, in
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violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1114; in violation of Title 18, United States Code,

Section 373.

COUNT SIX
(Violation 18 U.S.C. §373)

Paragraphs 1 through 10 of this indictment are hereby realleged in their cntirety and
incorporated by reference herein,

On or about March 17, 2003, the precisc date being unknown to the grand jury, in the District
of 1daho, the defendant, DAVID ROLAND HINKSON, with the intent that JH engage in conduct
constituting a felony that has as an element the use of physical force against the person of another
in violation of the laws of the United States, and under circumstances strongly corroborative o.fthat
intent, did solicit, command, induce and endeavor to persuade JH to engage in such conduct, that is
to murder Internal Revenue Service Speeial Agent Steven M. Hines, an officer of the United States,
in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1114; in violation of Title 18, United States
Code, Scction 373.

COUNT SEVEN
(Violation 18 U.S.C. §373)

Paragraphs 1 through 10 of this indictment are hercby realleged in their entircty and
incorporated by reference herem.

Between about December 2002 and February 2003, the preeise date being unknown to the
grand jury, in the District of Idaho, the defendant, DAVID ROLAND HINKSON, with the intent that
EJS engage in conduct constituting a felony that has as an element the usc of physical force against
the person of another in violation ofthe laws of the United States, and under circumstances strongly

corroborative of that intent, did solicit, command, induce and endeavor to persuade EJS to cngage

in such conduct, that is to murder United States District Court Judge Edward J. Lodge, an officer of




Case 1:04-cr—®27—RCT Document 1 Filed 06/201 Page 7 of 10

the United States, in violation of Title 18, United Statcs Code, Section 1114; in violation of Title 18,

United States Code, Scction 373.

COUNT EIGHT
(Violation 18 U.8.C. §373)

Paragraphs 1 through 10 of this indiciment arc hereby realleged in their entircty and
incorporated by reference herein.

Between about December 2002 and February 2003, the precise date being unknown to the
grand jury, in the District of 1daho, the defendant, DAVID ROLAND HINKSON, with the intent that
EJS engage in conduct constiluting a fclony that has as an clement the use of physical force against
the person of another in violation of the laws of the United States, and under circumstances strongly
corroborative of that intent, did solicit, command, induce and endeavor to persuade BJS to engage
in such conduct, that is to murder Assisﬁant United States Attorey Nancy D. Cook, an officer of the
United States in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1114; in violation of Title 18,

United States Code, Scction 373,

COUNT NINE
(Violation 18 U.S.C. §373)

Paragraphs 1 through 10 of this indictment are hereby rcalleged in their entirety and
incorporated by reference herein.

Between about December 2002 and February 2003, the precise date being unknown to the
grand jury, in the Districl of Tdaho, the defendant, DAVID ROLAND HINKSON, with the intent that
EJS engage in conduct constituting a felony that has as an element the use of physical force against
the person of another in violation of the laws of the United States, and under circumstances str.ongly

corroborative of that intent, did solicit, command, induce and endeavor to persuade EJS to engage

in such conduct, that is to murder Internal Revenue Scrvice Special Agent Steven M. Hines, an




Case 1:04~cr—(°27-RCT Document 1 Filed 06/2e Page 8 of 10

officer of the United States, in violation of Titlc 18, United States Code, Section 1114; in violation
of Title 18, United States Code, Section 373.
COUNT TEN
(Violation 18 U.8.C. §115)

Paragraphs 1 through 10 of this indictment are hereby realleged in their entirety and
incorporated by reference herein.

Between about January 2003 and March 31, 2003, the precise date being unknown to the
grand jury, in the District of ldaho, the defendant, DAVID ROLAND HINKSON, did unlawfully
threaten to murder the children of Nancy D, Cook, Assistant United States Attorney, by stating to
AB, a woman living in his house, that he wanted to kill AUSA Cook’s children in front of AUSA
Cook, with the intent (o impede, intimidate, interfere with and retaliate against.AUSA Cook on

account of the performance of her official duties, in violation of Title 18, United States Code,
Section 115(a)(1)(B).
COUNT ELEVEN
(Violation 18 U.S.C. §115)

Paragraphs 1 through 1lof this indictment arc hereby realleged in their entirety and
inco;poraled by reference herein.

Between about January 2003 and March 31, 2003, the precise date being unknown to the ’
grand jury, in the District of ldaho, the defendant, DAVID ROLAND HINKSON, willfully and
unlawfully did threaten (o murder the children of Steven M. Hines, Special Agent, Internal Revenue
Service, by stating to AB, a woman living in his house, that he wanted to kill Special Agent Hines’

children in front of Special Agent Hines, with the intent to impede, intimidate, interfere with and

retaliate against Special Agent Hines on account of the performance ofhis official dutics, in violation
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of Title 18, United States Codc, Section 115(a)(1)(B).

Dated this day of June, 2004.

A TRUE BILL
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United States Department of Justice
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Special Assistant United States Attorney
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE DISTRICT OF IDAHO

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, )
)
Plaintiff, %
VB. )
%
DAVID ROLAND HINKSON, g
Defendant. )
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
j)
The grand jury charges that:

Criminal Case No.

moretmentCR 02-0142 -c g

FAILURE TO FILE TAX RETURNS (26 US.C.
§ 7203)

FAILURE TO COLLECT EMPLOYMENT
TAXES (26 U.S.C. § 7202)

INTRODUCTION OF ADULTERATED AND
MISBRANDED DRUGS AND DEVICES INTO
INTERSTATE COMMERCE (21 U.S.C. § 331(a))

STRUCTURING TRANSACTIONS TO AYOID
REPORTING REQUIREMENTS
(B1US.C. § 5324()(3) & (c)(2), 18 US.C. §2)

FORFEITURE (18 U.S.C. § 982(a)(1) & 31
U.S.C.§ 5324(2)

INTRODUCTORY ALLEGATIONS

[istrict of Idaho.

INDICTMENT - 1

At all times relevant to this indictment:

s Defendant DAVID ROLAND HINKSON was a resident of [daho County, Idaho, in the

ISR
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Defendant DAVID ROLAND HINKSON conducted a business as a sole proprietorship
under the name WaterOz, with its principal place of business in Idaho County, Idaho, in
the Distnct of Idaho.

Defendant DAVID ROLAND HINKSON annually caused to be professionally prepared
U.S. Individual Income Tax Returns, Forms 1040, which Jisted his income and tax ligbility |
figures as follows, and submitted said returns to lending institutions in order to secure
loans and other {inancing, yet failed lo file the retums with the Internal Revenue Service or

the Tdaho State Tax Commission.

Tax | WaterOz WaterOz Gross | WaterOz | Defendant’s | Defendant’s
Year | Gross Income Net Profit | Taxable Total Tax Due
Business Income
Receipts
1997 $682,588 $313,368 $224 681 $191,463 $67,122
1998 $639,229 $270,753 $208,450 $170,127 $58,939
71999 $2,302,145 $1,273,353 $733,639 $712,114 $283,808
2000 $4,368,423 $2,586,456 $739,233 $717,259 5285,949
2002 $3,877,347 $2,912,163 $637,484 $617,312 $242,784

The Internal Revenue Code required cmployers to withhold employees' shares of Federal
Insurance Contribution Act ("FICA") taxes, which represent social security and medicare
1a3(es, and foderal income taxes from the wages of their employees, and to pay the
withheld amounts to the United States, The FICA and income taxes withheld from the
wages of employees wete requited to be deposited with an authorized financial institution
or Federal Reserve Barik, at intervals that depend on the amounts withheld. The
cmployer was required to report the amount of withheld FICA and income taxes on an
Employer’s Quarterly Federal Tax Return, Form 941, The Form 941 was required to be

filed quarterly, one month afier the conclusion of each quarter.

INDICTMENT -2
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Defendant DAVID ROLAND HINKSON was an employer, paid wages 10 employess,
and as such was required by law to collect from his employees, account for, and pay over
10 the [nternal Revenue Service federal income taxes and FICA taxes.

The deferidant, DAVID ROLAND HINKSON, {hrough WaterOz, manufactured and
introduced into interstate commerce various health-related products, including bottled
mincral water, sold as “lithium water,” “selenium water,” and “molybdenum waler,” as
well as “ozone generators” and “‘ozone body suits,” to both wholesale and retail
customers, which were marketed to the public as being able to cure, mitigate or treat
human diseases, including AIDS, slcoholism, anthrax, cancer, gangrens, and manic
depression. The WaterOz manufacturing facility was not registered with the Secretary of
the Department of Health and Human Services as a drug or device manufacturer pursuant '
1o Title 21, United States Code, Section 360(c). Likewise, HINKSON, through WaterQOz,
was engaged in the manufacture, promotion, use, xnd sale of ozone and ozone generators
1o both wholesale and retail customers. HINKSON promoted and sold ozone generators
and ozone body suits to deliver ozone to the body to treat and mitigate medical conditions
of man.

The United States Food and Drug Administration (FDA) was the federal agency charged
with the responsibility of protecting the health and safety of the American public by
enforcing the Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act (FDCA). Among the purposes of he FOCA
swas to ensure {hat dmegs and devices sold for consumption or administration to humans,
or for other use by humans, were safe, effective, and bore labeling containing only true
and accurate information. The FDA’s responsibilities under the FDCA included
regulating the manufacture, labeling and distribution of all drugs and devices shipped or
received in interstate commerce.

Under the FDCA, every person upon first engaging in the manufacture, preparation,

propagation, compounding or processing of drugs or devices in any establishment he

INDICTMENT - 3




(Vo R D TR = W Y -V VS S o5 S

S T S T T T S e e R e e
?aggﬁfuwm»aoxomﬂmu-nwm»—o

10.

ft

Case 3:02-cr-0014&LW—RCT Document 1 Filed 07/‘)2 Page 4 of 28

owned or operated was required to immediately register his name, places of business, and

all such establishments. Title 21, United States Code, Section 360(c). The terms

“manufacture, preparation, propagation, compounding or processing” included

repackaging or 6therwise changing the container, wrapper, ot labeling of any drug or

device from the original place of manufacture to the person who makes the final sale to

the ultimate consumer or user. Title 21, United States Code, Section 360(a)(1).

The term “labeling” was defined as all labels and other printed or graphic matter upon

any article, including dmgs and devices, or any of its containers or wrappers, or

accompanying such articles. Title 21, United States Code, Section 321(m).

Under the FDCA, drugs were defined as articles intended for use in the cure, mitigation,

ireatment or prevention of disease in man (Title 21, United States Code, Section

32 1(g)(1)(B)); articles inlended to affect the structure or function of the body of man

(Title 21, United States Code, Section 321(g)(1)(C)); or articles intended for use as

components of other drugs (Title 21, United States Code, Section 321{g)(1)(D)).

A drug was misbranded if, among other things:

a. its labeling was false or mislcading in any pa;ﬁcular (Titlé 21, United States Code,
Section 352(a));

b. the labeling on the drug did not bear adequate directions for use (Title 21, United
States Code, Section 352 (£)(1)};

e the labeling on the drug did not bear such adequate warnings against use in thosc

pathological conditions, and by children where its use may be dangerous to health,
and against unsafe dosage and methods and duration of administration and
application, in such manner and form, as were necessary for the protection of

users (Title 21, United States Code, Section 352(f)(2));

INDICTMENT - 4
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d. the drug was dangerous to health when used in the dosage and manner and with
the frequency and duration prescribed, recommended, and suggested in the
labeling thereof (Title 21, Uﬁited States Code, Section 352(3));

&, it was manufactured, prepared, propagated, compounded or processed in an
establishment in a state not duly registered with the Secretary of Health and
Human Services pursuant to Title 21, United States Code, Section 360. (Title21,
United States Code, Section 352(0)); or

f. the drug was a prescription drug dispensed without a prescription (Title 21,
United States Code, Section 353(b)(1)).

12. A drug was adulterated if, among other things:

a. the methods used in, or the controls used for, its manufacture, processing,
packing or holding did not conform to or were not operated or administered in
conformity with current Good Manufacturing Practice ("GMP") to assure that
such drug met the requirements of the FDCA as to safety and had the identity,
strength, quality and purity characteristics which it‘purpcrted or represcnted to
possess. Title 21, United States Code, Section 351(a)(2)}(B);

b. its strength differed from, or its purity or quality fell below, that which it
purporied or was represented to posscss. Title 21, United States Code, Section

351 (c).

13. Under the FDCA, a "device" was defined, in relevant part, as “an instrument, apparatus,
implement, machine, contrivance . . . or other similar or related article, including any
cornponent, part, or accessory, which is . . . intended for use in the diagnosis of disease or
other conditions, or in the cure, mitigation, treatment, oOr prevention of disease, in man or
other animals, or . . . intended to affect the structure or any function of the body of man or
other animals, and which does not achieve its pritaary intended purposes fhrough

chemical action within or on the body of man or other animals and which is not

INDICTMENT - 5
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dependent upon being metabolized for the achievement of its primary intended purposes.”
(Title 21, United States Code, Sections 321¢h)(2) and (3)).

Pursuant to Title 21, United States Code, Section 360c(£}(1), any device that was not in
commercial distibution prior to May 28, 1976, was initially classified as a Class it
device unless it was shown to be substantially equivalent (o & device marketed prior to
May 28, 1976. |

Ozone generators were Class 111 devices within the meaning of Title 21, United States
Code, Section 360c.

Pursuant to Title 21, United States Code, Section 360e(a)(2) a device classified as a
Class T1I device pursuant to Title 21, United States Code, Section 360c(f)(1) was required
to have FDA approval of an application for premarket approval (“PMA™). Ifthe
manufacturer or sponsor of the device believed their device was substantially equivalent
to an existing device markcted before May 28, 1976, they could submit a pre-markel
notification, or "510(k) notification,” pursuant {0 Title 21, United States Code, Section
360(k), instead of the PMA, and attempt to establish to the FDA's satisfaction that the
now device was substantially equivalent to the existing device. Pursuant {0 Title 21,
United Stales Code, Section 360j(g), if a firm wanted to usc a device on humans on an
exporimental basis to obtain the required information with which to file a PMA or 510(k)
notiﬁcation, the firm was required to subuﬁt to the FDA an application for an
investigational device exemption ("IDE") for permission to use such device.

Under Title 21, United States Codc,QSecﬁon 360(c) of the FDCA, every person, upon
first engaging in the manufacture of a device, was required to immediately register with
the Secretary of Health and Human Services his or her name, place of business, and the
establishment where the device was manufactured.

A device was misbranded if, among other things:

INDICTMENT - 6
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dependent upon being metabolized for the achievement of its primary intended purposes.”
(Title 21, United States Code, Sections 321¢h)(2) and (3)).

Pursuant to Title 21, United States Code, Section 3600(?}(1 ), any device that was not in
commercial distibution prior to May 28, 1976, was initially classified as a Class Il
device unless it was shown to be substantially equivalent (o & device marketed prior to
May 28, 1976. |

Ozone generators were Class 111 devices within the meaning of Title 21, United States
Code, Section 360c.

Pursuant to Title 21, United States Code, Section 360e(a)(2) a device classified as a
Class T1I device pursuant to Title 21, Uniled States Code, Section 360c(f)(1) was required
to have FDA approval of an application for premarket approval (“PMA™). Ifthe
manufacturer or sponsor of the device believed their device was substantially equivalent
to an existing device markcted before May 28, 1976, they could submit a pre-markel
notification, or "510(k) notification,” pursuant {0 Title 21, United States Code, Section
360(k), instead of the PMA, and attempt to establish to the FDA's satisfaction that the
now device was substantially equivalent to the existing device. Pursuant {0 Title 21,
United Stales Code, Section 360j(g), if a firm wanted to usc a device on humans on an
exporimental basis to obtain the required information with which to file a PMA or $10(k)
notiﬁcation, the firm was required to submit to the FDA an application for an
investigational device exemption ("IDE") for permission to use such device.

Under Title 21, United States Codc,»Secﬁon 360(¢c) of the FDCA, every person, upon
first engaging in the manufacture of a device, was required to immediately register with
the Secretary of Health and Human Qervices his or her name, place of business, and the
establishment where the device was manufactured.

A device was misbranded if, among other things:
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a its labeling was false or misleading in any particular (Title 21, United States
Code, Section 352(a));

b. the 1abeling on the device did not bear adequate directions for use (Title 21,
United States Code, Section 352 (£)(1)); or

€. it was manufactured, prepared, propagated, compounded or processed in an
establishment, in a state, not duly registered with the Secretary of Health and
Human Services pursuant to Title 21, United States Code, Section 360. (Title 21,

United States Code, Section 352(0)).

A Class TII device was deemed to be adulterated if, among other things, it was not the
subject of an approved application for premarket approval under Title 21, Uniled States
Code, Section 360¢(a) and was not exempt from FDA’s premarket approval requirements
under Title 21, United States Code, Section 360j(g) (Title 21, Urﬁted States Code,
Section 351(H(1(B)-

COUNTS ONE THROUGH THREE
26 U.S.C. § 7203
Willful Failure to File Income Tax Return

COUNT ONE
Paragraphs 1 through 3 are hereby realleged and incorporated by reference as if get forth
in full herein;
During the calendar year 1997, defendant DAYID ROLAND HINKSON received
sufficient gross income that he was required by law, following the close of the calendar
year 1997, and on or before April 15, 1998, to make an income tax return to the Distnict
Director of the Intermnal Revenue Service for {he Rocky Mountain District, al Denver,
Colorado, or the District Director’s Representative, at Boise or Coeur d’Alene, in the
District of Idaho, or to the Director of the Internal Revenue Service Center, at Ogden,
Utah, or another proper officer of the United States, stating specifically the ilems of his

gross income and any deductions and credits to which he was entitled;
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1122, Well knowing all of the foregoing, defendant DAVID ROLAND HINKSON

p did willfully fail to make said income tax return to the District Director of the Intcrnal |
3 Revenue Service, 10 the District Director’s chrescnts.t‘wc to the Director of the [nternal
4 Revenue Service Center, or to 20y other proper officer of the United States; !
5 All in violation of Title 26, United States Code, Section 7203.
6 | COUNT TWO
71 23. Paragraphs 1 through 3 are hereby realleged and incorporated by reference as if set forth
8 . in full herein;
9| 24. Duringthe calendar year 1998, dcfendant DAVID ROLAND HINKSON received
10 cufficient gross income that he was required by law, following the close of the calendar
11 | year 1998, and on or before April 15, 1999, 1o make an income tax return to the District
12 Director of the Internal Revenue Service for the Rocky Mountain District, at Denver,
13 Colorado, or the District Director's Represeniaﬁve, at Boisc or Coeur d’ Alene, in the
14 District of daho, or (0 the Directot, Internal Revenue Service Center, at Ogden, Utah, or
15 other proper officer of the United States, stating specifically the itemns of his gross income
16 and any deductions and credits to which he was entitled;

17 1 25.  well knowing all of the foregoing. defendant DAVID ROLAND HINKSON did

18 willfully fail to make said income tax return 10 {he District Dircctor of the Internal

19 Revenue Service, 10 {he District Director’s Representative, to the Director of the Internal
20 Revenue Service Center, or to any other proper officer of tim United States:

21 * Al in violation of Title 26, United States Code, Section 7203.

2| | COUNT THREE

23 || 26.  Paragraphs 1 through 3 are hereby realleged and incorporated by reference as if set forth
24 in full herein;

25 | 27.  During the calendar year 1995, defendant DAVID ROLAND HINKSON received

260 sufficient gross income that he was required by law, following the close of the calendar

28 | INDICTMENT - 8
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year 1999, and on or before April 17, 2000, to make an income tax return to the District
Director of the Internal Revenue Service for the Rocky Mountain District, at Denver,
Colorado, or the District Director’s Representative, at Boise or Coeur d’Alene, in the
District of 1daho, or to the Director, Internal Revenue Service Center, at Ogden, Utah, or
other prépar officer 6( the United States, stating specifically the items of his gross income
and any deductions and credits to which he was entitled;
Well knowing all of the foregoing, defendant DAVID ROLAND HINKSON did
willfully fail to make said income tax return to the District Director of the Internal
Revenue Service, to the District Director’s Representative, to the Director of the Internal
Revenue Service Center, or to any other proper officer of the United States;
Allin violation of Title 26, United States Code, Section 7203,

COUNTS FOUR THROUGH SIXTEEN

26 U.S.C. § 7202
willful Failure to Collect Federal Taxes

COUNT FOUR

Paragraphs 1,2, 4, and 5 are hereby realleged and incorporated by reference as if set forth
in full herein;

During the third quarter of 1997, in the Disirict of Idaho, defendant DAVID ROLAND
HINKSON, doing business as WaterQOz, paid wages to employees, from which he was
required by law to collect federal income taxes and FICA taxes;

On or about October 31, 1997, in the District of Idaho, defendant DAVID ROLAND
HINKSON did willfully fail to collect, account for, and pay over to the Iﬁtemal Revenue
Service the federal income taxes or FICA (axes due and owing to the United States of
America for (he said quarter, ending September 30, 1997;

All in violation of Title 26, United States Code, Section 7202.
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COUNT FIVE
Paragraphs 1, 2, 4, and § are hereby realleged and incorporated by reference as if set forth
in full herein;
During the fourth quarter of 1997, in the District of Idaho, defendant DAVID ROLAND
HINKSON, doing business as WaterOz, ?aid wages to employees, from which he was
required by law to collect federal income taxes and FICA taxcs;
On or about January 31, 1998, in the District of Idaho, defendant DAVID ROLAND
HINKSON did willfully fail to collect, account for, and pay over (o the Internal Revenue
Service (he federal income taxcs or FICA taxes due and owing to the United States of
America for the said quarter, ending December 31, 1997;
All in violation of Title 26, United States Code, Section 7202.

COUNT SIX

Paragraphs 1, 2, 4, and 3 are hereby realleged and incorporated by reference as if set forth
in full herein;
During the first quarter of 1998, in the District of Idaho, defendant DAVID ROLAND
HINKSON, doing business as WaterOz, paid wages to employees, from which he was
required by law to collect federal income taxes and FICA taxes;
On or about April 30, 1998, in the District of ldaho, defendant DAVID ROLAND
HINKSON did willfully fail to collect, account for, and pay over (o the Internal Revenuc
Service the federal income taxes or FICA taxes due and owing to the United States of
America for the said quarter, ending March 31, 1998;
All in violalion of Title 26, United States Code, Section 7202.
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COUNT SEVEN

Paragraphs 1, 2, 4, and 5 are hereby rcalleged and incorporated by reference as if set forth
in full herein;
During the second quarter of 1998, in the District of Tdaho, defendant DAVID ROLAND
HINKSON, doing business as WaterOz, paid wages to employees, from which he was
required by law to collect federal income taxes and FICA taxes;
On or about July 31, 1998, in the District of Idaho, defendant DAVID ROLAND
HINKSON did willfully fail to collect, account for, and pay over to the Internal Revenue
Service the federal income taxes or FICA taxes due and owing to the United States of
Arﬁeﬁca for the said quarter, ending June 30, 1998,
All in violation of Title 26, United States Code, Section 7202.

COUNT EIGHT
Paragraphs 1, 2, 4, and 5 are hereby realleged and incorporated by reference as if set forth
in full herein;
During the third quarter of 1998, in the District of Idaho, defendant DAVID ROLAND
HINKSON, doing business as WaterOz, paid wages to employees, from which he was
required by law to collect federal income taxes and F ICA taxes;
On or aboul October 31, 1998, in the District of Idaho, defendant DAVID ROLAND
HINKSON did willfully fail to collect, account for, and pay over to the Internal Revenue
Service the federal income taxes or FICA taxes due and owing to the United States of
America for the said quarter, ending September 30, 1998;
All in violation of Title 26, United States Code, Section 7202,
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COUNT NINE

Paragraphs 1, 2, 4, and 5 are hereby realleged and incorporated by reference as if set forth

~ in full herein;

During the fourth quarter of 1998, in the District of Idaho, defendant DAVID ROLAND
HINKSON, doing business as WaterOz, paid wages lo employees, from which he was
required by law to collect federal income taxes and FICA taxcs;
On or about January 31, 1999, in the District of Idaho, defendant DAVID ROLAND
HII‘IKSQN did willfully fail to collect, account for, and pay over to the Internal Revenue
Service the federal income taxes or FICA taxes due and owing to the United States of
America for the said quarter, ending December 31, 1998,
All in violation of Title 26, United States Code, Section 7202.

COUNT TEN
Paragraphs 1, 2, 4, and 5 are hereby realleged and incorporated by reference as if sel forth
in full herein;
During the first quarter of 1999, in the District of Idaho, defendant DAVID ROLAND
HINKSON, doing busincss as WaterOz, paid wages to employees, from which he was
required by law to collect federal income taxes and FICA taxes;
On or about April 30, 1999, in the Disirict of Tdaho, defendant DAVID ROLAND
HINKSON did willfully fail to collect, account for, and pay over to the Internal Revenue
Service the federal income taxes or FICA taxes duc and owing to the United States of
America for the said quarter, ending March 31, 1999,

All in violation of Title 26, United States Code, Section 7202.
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COUNT NINE

Paragraphs 1, 2, 4, and 5 are hereby realleged and incorporated by reference as if set forth

~ in full herein;

During the fourth quarter of 1998, in the District of Idaho, defendant DAVID ROLAND
HINKSON, doing business as WaterOz, paid wages lo employees, from which he was
required by law to collect federal income taxes and FICA taxes;
On or about January 31, 1999, in the District of Idaho, defendant DAVID ROLAND
HINKSON did willfully fail to collect, account for, and pay over to the Internal Revenue
Service the federal income taxes or FICA taxes due and owing to the United States of
America for the said quarter, ending December 31, 1998,
All in violation of Title 26, United States Code, Section 7202.

COUNT TEN
Paragraphs 1, 2, 4, and 5 are hereby realleged and incorporated by reference as if sel forth
m full herein;
During the first quarter of 1999, in the District of Idaho, defendant DAVID ROLAND
HINKSON, doing busincss as WaterOz, paid wages to employees, from which he was
required by law to collect federal income taxes and FICA taxes;
On or about April 30, 1999, in the Disirict of Idaho, defendant DAVID ROLAND
HINKSON did willfully fail to collect, account for, and pay over to the Internal Revenue
Service the federal income taxes or FICA taxes duc and owing to the United States of
America for the said quarter, cnding March 31, 1999;

All in violation of Title 26, United States Code, Section 7202.
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COUNT ELEVEN
Paragraphs 1, 2, 4, and 5 are hereby realleged and incorporated by reference as if set forth
in full herein;
During the second quarter of 1999, in the District of Idaho, defendant DAVID ROLAND
HINKSON, doing business as WaterOz, paid wages to employees, from which he was
requircd by law to collect federal income taxes and FICA taxes;
On or about July 31, 1999, in the District of Idaho, defendant DAVID ROLAND
HINKSON did willfully fail to collect, account for, and pay over to the Internal Revenue
Service the federal income taxes or FICA taxes due and owing to the United States of
America for the said quarter, ending June 30, 1599;
All in violation of Title 26, United States Code, Section 7202.

COUNT TWELVE
Paragraphs 1, 2, 4, and 5 are hereby realleged and incorporated by reference as if set forth
in full herein;
During the third quarter of 1999, in the District of Idaho, defendant DAVID ROLAND
HINKSON, doing business as WalerOz, paid wages to employees, from which he was
required by Taw to collect lederal income taxes and FICA taxes;
On or about October 31, 1999, in the District of Idaho, defendant DAVID ROLAND
HINKSON did willfully fail to collect, account for, and pay over to the Internal Revenue
Service the fed/cral income taxes or FICA taxes due and owing to the United States of
America for the said quarler, ending September 30, 1999;

All in violation of Title 26, United States Code, Section 7202,
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COUNT THIRTEEN

Paragraphs 1, 2, 4, and 5 are hereby realleged and incorporated by reference as if set forth
in full herein;
During the fourth quarter of 1999, in the District of Tdaho, defendant DAVID ROLAND
HINKSON, doing business as WeterOz, paid wages to employees, from which he was
required by law to collect federal income taxes and FICA taxes;
On or about January 31, 2000, in the District of Idaho, defendant DAVID ROLAND
HINKSON did willfully fail to collect, account for, and pay over to-the Internal Revenue
Service the federal income taxes or FICA taxes duc and owing to the United States of
America for the said quarter, ending December 31, 1999;
All in violation of Title 26, United States Code, Section 7202.

COUNT FOURTEEN

Paragraphs 1, 2, 4, and § are hereby realleged and incorporated by reference as if set forth
in full herein;

During the first quarter of 2000, in fhe District of [daho, defendant DAVID ROLAND
HINKSON, doing business as WaterOz, paid wagcs to employees, from which he was
required by law to collect federal income taxes and FICA taxes;

On or about April 30, 2000, in the District of Idaho, defendant DAVID ROLAND
HINKSON did willfully il to colleet, account for, and pay over to the Internal Revenue
Service (he federal income taxes or FICA taxes due and owing to the United States of
America for the said quarter, ending March 31, 2000;

All in violation of Title 26, United States Code, Section 7202.
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COUNT FIFTEEN
Paragraphs 1, 2, 4, and 5 are hereby realleged and incorporated by reference as if set forth
in full herein;
During the second quarter of 2000, in the District of Idaho, defendant DAVID ROLAND
HINKSON, doing business as WaterOz, paid wages to cmployees, from which he was
required by law to collect federal income taxes and FICA taxes;
On or about July 31, 2000, in the District of Idaho, defendant DAYID ROLAND
HINKSON did willfully fail to collect, account for, and pay over to the Iniernal Revenuc
Service the federal income taxes or FICA taxes due and owing to the United States of
America for the said quarter, ending June 30, 2000;
All in violation of Title 26, United States Code, Scction 7202.

COUNT SIXTEEN
Paragraphs 1, 2, 4, and 5 are hereby reallcged and incorporated by reference as if set forth
in full herein;
During the third quarter of 2000, in the District of Tdaho, dcfendant DAVID ROLAND
HINKSON, doing business as WaterOz, paid wages to employees, from which he was
required by law to collect federal incorne taxes and FICA taxes;
On or shout Octaber 31, 2000, in the District of Idaho, dcfendant DAYVID ROLAND
HINKSON did willfully fail to collect, account for, and pay over to the Internal Revenue
Service the federal income taxes or FICA taxes due and owing to the United States of
America for the said quarter, ending September 30, 2000;
All int violation of Title 26, United States Code, Section 7202,
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COUNTS SEVENTEEN THRQUGH TWENTY
21 US.C. § 331(a)
Misbranded Drug

COUNT SEVENTEEN

Paragraphs 2 and 6 through 12 are hereby realleged and incorporated by refercnce as if set

forth 1o full herein;

" On or about January 22, 2002, within the District of Idaho and elsewhere, defendant
DAVID ROLAND HINKSON did introduce and cause (o be delivered for introduction
into intcrstate commerce, 1o Pmole, Catifornia, a bottle of WaterOz Lithium product, a
drug within the meaning of Title 21, United States Code, Scction 321(g)(1)(B), m that it
was intended for use in treating, among other things, alcoholism, manic depression, and
mental instability in man, which was mishranded in the following ways:

a within the meaning of Title 21, United States Code, Section 352(d), in that its
labeling was false or misleading in any manner, in that the 1abeling claimed the
“product conlained "30+/- parts per million" Lithium, when it actually contamed

approximately 2.5 parts per million of Lithium.

b. within the meaning of Title 21, United States Code, Section 352(f)(1), in that the
lzbeling on the drug did not bear adequate direction for use;

c. within the meaning of Title 21, United States Code, Section 352(0), in that the
drug was manufactured, prepared and processed in the WaterOz facility in Idaho
County, Idaho, which was an establishment in a state not duly registered under
Title 21, United States Code, Section 360.

All in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Sections 331({a) and 333(a)(1).
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COUNT EIGHTEEN

Paragraphs 2 and 6 through 12 are hereby realleged and incorporated by reference as if sel |

forth in full herein;.

On or about Japuary 22, 2002, within the District of Idaho and clsewhere, defendant

DAVID ROLAND HINKSON did introduce and cause to be delivered for introduction

into interstate commerce, to Pinole, California, a bottle of WaterOz Molybdenum

product, a drug within the meaning of Title 21, United States Code, Section 321(g)(1)(B)
in that it was intended for use in treating cancer, AIDS, acne, allergies, asthma, Bell's

Palsy, canker sotes, colds and flu, Down's Syndrome, Eczema, Epstein Barr virus, gout,

Gulf War Syndrome, Hepatitis C, Herpes Simplex, impotence, incontinence, insomnia,

itritable bowel syndrome, cirthosis, fupus, multiple sclerosis, parasites, phlebitis, prosiale

infections, Tingworm, sinusitis, and varicose veins in man, which was raisbranded in the
following ways:

a. within the meaning of Title 21, United States Code, Section 352(a), in that its
labeling was false or misleading in any manmer, in that the labeling claimed the
product contained "50+/- parls per million" Molybdenum, when it actually

~ contained approximately 6.2 parts per million of Molybdenurn.

b. within the meaning of Title 21, United States Code, Section 352(f)(1), in that the
{abeling on the drug did not bear adequate direction for use; and

. within the meaning of Title 21, United States Code, Section 352(0), in that the
drug was manufactured, prepared and processed in the WaterOz facility in ldaho
County, Idaho, which was an gstablishment in a state not duly registered under
Title 21, United States Code, Section 360.

All in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Sections 331(a) and 333(a)(1).
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COUNT NINETEEN

Paragraphs 2 and 6 through 12 are hereby realleged and incorporated by reference as if

set forth in full herein;

On or about January 22, 2002, within the Dyistrict of Idaho and elsewhere, defendant

DAVID ROLAND HINKSON did introduce and cause to be deliverced for introduction

{nto intcrstate commerce, (o Pinole, California, a botile of WaterOz Tin product, a drug

within the meaning of Title 21, United States Code, Section 321(g}(1)(B) in that it was

intended for use in treating shingles, a disease of man, which was misbranded in the
following ways:

a. within the meaning of Title 21, United States Code, Section 352(a), in that its
labeling was false or misleading in any marmer, in {hat the labeling claimed the
product contained "1 00+/- parts per million" Tin, when it actually contained
approximately 1 part per million of Tinu

b. within the meaning of Title 21, United States Code, Section 352(f)(1), in that the
{abeling on the drug did nol bear adequate direction for use; and

B within the meaning of Title 21, United States Code, Section 352(0), in that the
drug was manufactured, prepared and processed in the WaterQOz facility in Idaho
County, Idaho, which was an establishment in a statc not duly registered under
Title 21, United States Code, Scction 360.

All in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Sections 331{a) and 333(a)(1).

COUNT TWENTY

Paragraphs 2 and 6 through 12 are hereby realleged and incorporated by reference as if
sel forth in full herein;

On or about January 22, 2002, within the District of Idaho and elsewhere, defendant
DAVID ROLAND HIN I;SON did introduce and cause to be delivered for introduction

into interstatc commerce, to Pinole, California, a bottle of WaterOz Selenium product, 8
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drug within the meaning of Title 21, United States Code, Section 321(g)(1)(B) in that it
was intended for use in treating cancer, AIDS, Attention Deficit Disorder ("ADD"),
Alzheimer's, appendicitis, Candidiasis, ovarian cysts, Down's Syndrome, emphysema,
glaucoma, heart arrhythmia and heart failure, hemorrhoids, Hepatitis C, high cholcsterol,
infertility, cirrhosis, lupus, macular degencration, multiple s¢lerosis, Parkinson's disease,
psoriasis, tremors and whooping cough in man, which was misbranded in the following

ways:

a. within the meaning of Title 21, United States Codc, Section 352(), in thal its

labeling was false or misleading in any manner, in that the labeling claimed the
product contained "75+/- parts per million" Selenium, when it actualty contained
approximately 26 parts per million of Seleninm.

b. within the meaning of Title 21, United States Code, Section 352(f)(1}, in that the
labeling on the drug did not bear adequate direction for use; and

2. within the meaning of Title 21, United States Code, Section 352(0), in that the
drug was manufactured, prepared and processed in the WaterOz facility in Idaho
County, Idaho, which was an establishment in & state not duly registered under
Title 21, United States Code, Section 360,

All in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Sections 331(2) and 333(&)(1).

COUNTS TWENTY-ONE THROUGH TWEN TY-FOUR

21 U.S.C. § 331(a)
Adulterated Drug

COUNT TWENTY-ONE

Paragraphs 2 and 6 through 12 are hereby realleged and incorporated by reference as if
set forth in full herein;

On or about January 22, 2002, within the District of Idaho and elsewhere, defendant
DAVID ROLAND HINKSON did introduce and cause to be delivered for introduction

into interstate commerce, to Pinole, California, a bottle of WaterOz Lithium product, a
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drug, which was adulterated as defined at Title 21, United States Code, Sectian 351(c),
in that its strength differed from, or its purity or quality fell below, that which it was
purported and represented to possess, to wit: the labeling for the WaterOz Lithium
product purported that it contained 30 +/- paris per million of Lithium, whereas it actually v
only containcd approximately 2.5 parts per million of Lithium, in violation of Title 21,
United States Code, Sections 331(a) and 333(a)(1).

COUNT TWENTY-TWO

Paragraphs 2 and 6 through 12 afe hereby realleged and incorporated by reference as if
set forth in full herein;.

On or about January 22, 2002, within the District of Idaho and elsewhere, defendant
DAVID ROLAND HINKSON did introduce and cause to be delivered for introduction
into interstate commerce, to Pinole, California, a bottle of WaterOz Molybdenum
product, a drug, which was adulterated as defined at Title 21, United States Code,
Section 351(c), in that its strength differed from, or its purity or quality fell below, that
which it was purported and represented 1o possess, to wit: the labeling for the WaterQOz
Molybdenum product purported that it contained SO +/~ parts per million of Molybdenum,
whereas it actually only contained approximately 6.2 parts per million of Molybdenur, 1a
violation of Title 21, United States Code, Sections 331(a) and 333(a)(1).

COUNT TWENTY-THREE

Paragraphs 2 and 6 through 12 are hereby realleged and incorporated by reference as if
sel forth in fall herein;

On or about January 22, 2002, within the District of Tdaho and elsewhere, defendant
DAVID ROLAND HINKSON did introduce and cause to be delivered for introduction
into interstate commerce, to Pinole, California, a bottlc of WaterQOz Tin product, a drug,
which was adulterated as defined at Title 21, United States Code, Section 351(c), in that

its strength differed from, or its purity or quality fell below, that which it was purported
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drug, which was adulterated as defined at Title 21, United States Code, Sectian 351(c),
in that its strength differed from, or its purity or quality fell below, that which it was
purported and represented to possess, to wit: the labeling for the WaterOz Lithium
product purported that it contained 30 +/- paris per million of Lithium, whereas it actually |
only containcd approximately 2.5 parts per million of Lithium, in violation of Title 21,
United States Code, Sections 331(a) and 333(a)(1).

COUNT TWENTY-TWO

Paragraphs 2 and 6 through 12 ai‘e hereby realleged and incorporated by reference as if
set forth in full hercin;.

On or about January 22, 2002, within the District of Idaho and elsewhere, defendant
DAVID ROLAND HINKSON did introduce and cause to be delivered for introduction
into interstate commerce, to Pinole, California, a bottle of WaterOz Molybdenum
product, a drug, which was adulterated as defined at Title 21, United States Code,
Section 351(c), in that its strength differed from, or its purity or quality fell below, that
which it was purported and represented 1o possess, to wit: the labeling for the WaterOz
Molybdenum product purported that it contalned 50 +/- parts per million of Molybdenum,
whereas it actually only contained approximately 6.2 parts per million of Molybdenur, 1a
violation of Title 21, United States Code, Seotions 331(a) and 333(a)(1).

COUNT TWENTY-THREE

Paragraphs 2 and 6 through 12 are hereby realleged and incorporated by reference as if
sel forth in fll herein;

On or about January 22, 2002, within the District of Tdaho and elsewhere, defendant
DAVID ROLAND HINKSON did introduce and cause to be delivered for introduction
into interstate commeree, to Pinole, California, a bottle of WaterQOz Tin product, a drug,
which was adulterated as defined at Title 21, United States Code, Section 351(c), in that

its strength differed from, or its purity or quality fell below, that which it was purported

INDICTMENT - 20
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and represented to possess, to wit: the labeling for the WaterOz Tin product purported
that it contained 100 +/- parts per million of Tin, whereas it actually only contained
approximately 1 part per million of Tin, in violation of Title 21, United States Code,
Sections 331(z) and 333(a)(1).

COUNT TWENTY-FOUR

Paragraphs 2 and 6 through 12 are hereby realleged and incorporated by reference as 1f
set forth in full herein; -

On or about January 22, 2002, within the District of Idaho and elsewhere, defendant
DAVID ROLAND HINKSON did introducc and cause Lo be delivered for introduction
into interstate commerce, to Pinole, California, a bottle of WaterOz Selenium product, a
drug, whiéh was adulterated as defined at Title 21, United States Code, Section 351 (),
in that its strength differed {rom, or its purity or quality fcll below, that which it was
purported and represented to possess, lo wit; the labeling for the WaterOz Selenium
product purporied that it contained 75 +/- parts per million of Selenium, whereas it
actually only contained approximately 26 parts per million of Selenium, in violation of
Title 21, United States Code, Sections 331(a) and 333(a)(1).

COUNT TWENTY-FIVE

21 U.S.C. § 331(a)
Misbranded Device

Paragraphs 2, 6 through 9, and 13 through 19 are hereby realleged and incorporated by
reference as if set forth in full herein;

The ozone generators manufactured by, and caused to be manufactured, sold, promoted,
and distributed by and on behalf of the defendant DAYID ROLAND HINKSON, werc
devices within the meaning of Title 21, United States Code, Section 321(h), because
they were an instrument, apparatus, implement, machine, and contrivance intended for
1se to treat cancer, gangrene, and other diseases in man, which did not achieve its primary

intended purposes through chemical action within or on the body of man or cther animals

| INDICTMENT - 21
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and which was not dependent upon being metabolized for the achievement of its primary

intended purposes. |

The ozone generators manufactured, sold, promoted, and distﬁbutcd by and on behalf of

the defendant were Class 111 devices within the rhe_aning of Title 21, United States Code,

Section 360¢, for which no approved application for premarket approval was in effect

pursuant to Title 21, United States Code, Section 360e and no investi gational device

exemption was in effect pursuant to Title 21, United States Code, Section 360j(g).

On or about Aptil 4, 2002, in the District of Idaho, defendant DAYID ROLAND

HINKSON did introduce and deliver for introduction into interstate commerce to Pinolc,

California, a device, an ozone generator, which was misbranded in the following manner:

a, its labeling was false or misleading in any particular, in that the labeling purported
that the device would generate device 1 (one) gram of ozone per hour, when in
actuality it only produced 0.05 gram of ozone per hour of operation. This
corresponds to 5% of the amount claimed by HINKSON. ( (Title 21, United States
Code, Section 352(a));

b. the labeling on the drug did not bear adequate directions for use (Title 21, United
States Code, chti on 352 (N(1)); and

G it was manufactured, prepared, propagated, cormpounded or processed in an
establishment in a state not duly registered with the Secretary of Health and
Human Services pursuant to Title 21, United States Code, Section 360. (Title 21,
Unitcd States Code, Section 352(0));

All in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Sections 331(a) and 333(a)(1).

INDICTMENT - 22
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COUNT TWENTY-SIX
21 U.8.C. § 331(8)
Adulterated Device

Paragraphs 2, 6 through 3, 13 through 19, and 85 and 36 are hereby realleged and
incorporated by reference as if set forth in full herein;
On or about April 4, 7002, in the District of Idaho, defendant DAVID ROLAND
HINKSON did introduce and deliver for introduction into interstate commerce, 10
Oakland, California, a device, an 0zone generator, which was adulterated within the
meaning of Title 21, United States Code, Section 351(H(1)(B) in that it was a Class [1]
device pursuant 10 T itle 21, United States Code, Section 360c(f)(1) and no approved
application for premarket approval was in gffect pursuant 10 Title 21, United States Code,
Section 360e, and 0o investigational deﬁice‘ exemption was in effect pursuant to Title 21,
United States Code, Section 360i(8);
All in violation of Title 21, Urited States Code, Sections 331(a) and 333(a)(1).

OUNTS TWENTY-SEVEN THROUGH FORTY-TWO

31 U.S.C. § 5324(2)(3) and (¢)(2) and 13 US.C.§82

Stru;turing Transactions and Aiding and Abetting
90.  Onor aboutthe dates set forth below, in the Disttict of Idaho, the def endant,

DAVID ROLAND HINKSON,

aided and abetted by those known and unknown to the grand jury, in Counts 27 through
42, did knowingly and for the purpose of evading the reporting requirements of section
5313(a) of Title 31, United States Cede, and the regulations promulgatcd thereunder,
structured and assisted in structuring, and attempted o structure and assist in structuring,
the following transactions with a Jomestic financial institution, Kamiah Community
Credit Union, and did so while violating others laws of the United States, as further

descrnibed below:

INDICTMENT -23
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29
30

31

a2

34

35

36

38
39
40

41
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DATE

11/02/00
11/03/00

11/09/00
11/09/00

11/16/00
11/16/00

11/22/00
11/22/00
11/22/00

12/07/00

12/68/00

12/13/00
12/14/00
12/14/00

12/21/00
12/22/00

12/28/00
12/28/00
12/29/00

01/04/01
01/05/01

D1/11/01
01/12/01

01/18/01
01/18/01
01/19/01

01/25/01
01/26/01

02/01/01

02/02/01 .

02/08/01
02/08/01

02/15/01
02/16/01

AMOUNT OF CASH WITHDRAWN

$9,000.00
$4,000.00

$9,000.00
$5,000.00

$9,000.00
§2,000.00

$9,000.00
$4,000.00
$4,000.00

§9,000.00
$5,000.00

£9,000.00
$3,500.00
$3,900.00

$9,000.00
$5,500.00

$9,000.00
£2,500.00
§2,000,00

$9,000.00
$3,000.00

$9,000.60
85,000.00

$9,000.00
$4,000.00
54,000.00

§9,000.00
$4,000.00

§9,000.00
$3,000.00

$9,000.00
$5,000.00

$9,000.00
$6,000.00

CHECK NUMBER

1173
1265

1309
1228

1328
1364

1353
1369
1397

1526
1540

1686
1500
1501

1699
1700

1673
1753
1718

1730
1674

1677
2386

2404
2409
1880

2430
2433

2439
2444

2456
2460

2472
2476
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COUNT

27
28

29
30

31

a2

34

3s
36

37

38
39
40

41
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DATE

11/02/00
11/03/00

11/09/00
11/09/00

11/16/00
11/16/00

11/22/00
11/22/00
11/22/00

12/07/00

12/68/00

12/13/00
12/14/00
12/14/00

12/21/00
12/22/00

12/28/00
12/28/00
12/29/00

01/04/01
01/05/01

D1/11/01
01/12/01

01/18/01
01/18/01
01/19/01

01/25/01
01/26/01

02/01/01

02/02/01 .

02/08/01
02/08/01

02/15/01
02/16/01

AMOUNT OF CASH WITHDRAWN

$9,000.00
$4,000.00

$9,000.00
$5,000.00

$9,000.00
§2,000.00

$9,000.00
$4,000.00
$4,000.00

§9,000.00
$5,000.00

$9,000.00
$3,900.00
$3,900.00

$9,000.00
$5,500,00

$9,000.00
£2,500.00
§2,000.00

£9,000.00
$3,000.00

$9,000.60
§5,000.00

$9,000.00
$4,000.00
54,000.00

§9,000.00
$4,000.00

§9,000.00
$3,000.00

$9,000.00
$5,000.00

§9,000.00
$6,000.00

CHECK NUMBER

1173
1265

1309
1228

1328
1364

1353
1369
1397

1526
1540

1686
1500
1501

1699
1700

1673
1753
1718

1730
1674

1677
2386

2404
2409
1880

2430
2433

2439
2444

2456
2480

2472
2476
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COUNT

27
28

29
30

31

32

34

35

36

38
39
40

41
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DATE
11/02/00
11/03/00

11/0%/00
11/09/00

11/16/00
11/16/00

11/22/00
11/22/00
11/22/00

12/07/00

12/08/00

12/13/00
12/14/00
12/14/00

12/21/00
12/22/00

12/28/00
12/28/00
12/28/00

01/04/01
01/05/01

01/11/01
01/12/01

01/18/01
01/18/01
01/15/01

01/25/01
01/26/01

02/01/01

02/02/01 .

02/08/01
02/08/01

02/15/01
02/16/01

AMOUNT OF CASH WITHDRAWN

$2,000.00
$4,000.00

$9,000.00
$5,000.00

$5,000.00
$2,000.00

$9,000.00
$4,000.00
$4,000.00

§9,000.00
$5.000.00

$9,000,00
$3,900.00
$3,900.00

$9,000.00
§5,500,00

$9,000.00
£2,500.00
§2,000.00

$9,000.00
$3,000.00

$9,000.00
§5,000.00

$9,000,00
$4.000.006
$4,000.00

§9,000.00
$4,000.00

§9,000.00
$3,000.00

$9,000.00
$5,000.00

$9,000.00
$6,000.00

CHECK NUMBER

1173
1266

1309
1228

1328
1364

1353
1369
1397

1526
1540

1686
1500
1501

1699
1700

1673
1753
1718

1730
1674

1677
2386

2404
2409
1880

2430
2433

2439
2444

2456
2480

2472
2476
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42 02/22/01 $9,000.00 2490
02/23/01 $6,000.00 ' 2495
All in violation of Title 31, United States Code, Sections 5324(a)(3) and (c)(2) and Title
18, United States Code, Section 2.
COUNT FORTY-THREE
18 U.S.C. § 982(a)(1) and 31 U.S.C. § 5324(a)

Forfeiture

91.  Upon conviction of one or more of the offeﬁses alleged in Counts 27 through 42 of this
Indictment, defendant DAVID ROLAND HINKSON shall forfeit to the United States
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 982(a)(1), all property, real and personal, involved in the
offensc(s), and any property traceable thereto, including but not limited to the fellowing:

MONEY JUDGMENT

92, A sum of money equal to $227,800.00 in United States currency, representing the amount
of mongy involved in the offense, siructuring financial transactions, 31 U.8.C. §§
5324(a)(3) and {(c)(2).

BANK ACCOUNT

93.  All United States currency funds or other monetary instruments credited to account
number 8602 in the name of Northern Lands LP, dba: WaterOz located at the Kamiah
Community Credit Union, P.O. Box 68, Kamiah, ID 83536.

SUBSTITUTE PROPERTY

94,  If any of the above-described forfeitable property, as a result of any act or omission of the
defendant(s): :
{a) cannot be located upon the exercise of due diligence;
(b) has been transferred or sold to, or deposited with, a third party;
(c) has been placed beyond the jurisdiction of the court;
{d) has been substantially diminished in value; or

{e) has been commingled with other property which cannot be divided without difficulty;
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95.  Itisthe intent of the United States, pursuant to 21 U.5.C. § 853(p) as incorporated by 18
U.S.C. § 982(b), to seek forfeitufe of any other property of said defendant up to the value
of the forfeitable property described in paragraphs 91 through 93 above,

DATED July _ ;7 , 2002,
| A TRUE BILL

St & gt 2o it
FOFEEPERSON

THOMAS E. MOSS
United States Altomney

NANCY D. COOK™

fy United States Attorney-

PHOMAS C. B LE
|| Special Assistanl United States Attorney
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